

DBOPC
05/09/2019

1 STATE OF MICHIGAN

2

3

CITY OF DETROIT

4

5

BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

6

7

MAY 9, 2019 MEETING

8

9

10

11

12 Present for the City of Detroit

13 Board of Police Commissioners:

14 William Bell - Chairman - District 4

Elizabeth Brooks - At-Large

15 Willie Burton - District 7

William M. Davis - District 7

16 Annie Holt - At-Large

Darryl D. Brown - Vice Chair - District 1

17 Shirley A. Burch - District 3

Lisa Carter - District 6

18 Eva Garza Dewaelsche - At-Large

Jim Holley - At-Large

19 Evette Griffie - District 2

20

21

City of Detroit

22 Board of Police Commissioners Meeting,

Taken at 14221 Southfield Service Drive,

23 Detroit, Michigan,

Commencing at 6:30 p.m.,

24 Thursday, May 9, 2019,

Before Medina J. Balderas, CSR-6213.

25

1 Detroit, Michigan
2 Thursday, May 9, 2019
3 6:30 p.m.

4
5 CHAIRMAN BELL: Good evening. I am Police
6 Commissioner Willie Bell. I represent District 4. I've
7 serviced here before and will be conducting our meeting
8 today. On behalf of the Board, for those in attendance,
9 thank you for joining us; for people viewing this
10 meeting on your government channel, thank you for
11 viewing our meeting tonight. Tonight's community
12 meeting is the fifth meeting held in our districts. We
13 are pleased to meet in the facility of Macedonia Baptist
14 Church. The Board of Police Commissioners is committed
15 to meeting in every district in Detroit over the course
16 of the year.

17 Tonight, we have invited Chaplain Stephen
18 Adolph to provide invocation, please. If not, I'm going
19 to ask Commissioner Holley.

20 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: May we bow our heads.

21 (INVOCATION)

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, Commissioner.

23 Tonight we are in the 8th Precinct, Voting
24 District 1. Representing District 1 is Commissioner
25 Darryl Brown. As the commissioner, Darryl Brown welcome

1 everyone to this district, introduce the pastor of this
2 great church, and this is Commissioner Brown' home
3 church.

4 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: It's a beautiful
5 place.

6 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Good evening, everyone.
7 Thank you for coming out to the 8th Precinct meeting
8 here in District 1 on the west side. Let's get it
9 started.

10 This is my church home, Macedonia Baptist
11 Church under the leadership of Pastor Charles D. Twymon.
12 Macedonia has been situated here in this community since
13 1998 when they opened the doors here and, recently, we
14 just purchased another facility down the street, and
15 that is our North Campus.

16 But thank you all for coming out, and I hope
17 we have pleasant, peaceful meeting.

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Can I assume the pastor is
19 coming forward at this time?

20 COMMISSIONER BROWN: At this time, I'd like
21 to call up our youth pastor. Our Pastor Twymon was not
22 able to be with us tonight, Reverend Terry Minor is here
23 tonight, and he is more than capable, he is one of the
24 sons of Macedonia to bring you greetings.

25 Reverend Minor.

1 REVEREND MINOR: Yes, sir, yes, sir. Thank
2 you.

3 Amen. Thank you for coming into our
4 building. First of all, we give respect to Chief Craig
5 in his absence. All the other men and women in blue, we
6 salute you for the job that you're doing. And for the
7 rest of this distinguished Board of Commissioners, this
8 is a church that believes in community. This is a
9 church that believes in community awareness and
10 activism. And so we certainly thank you for the job
11 that you are doing, and you have our full support. And
12 on behalf Pastor Charles Twymon and Macedonia Baptist
13 Church, we open our arms and we welcome you in the name
14 of our Lord and Saviour, Jesus the Christ. Amen.

15 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir. You're the
16 young son of the church and pastor. Thank you.

17 I also understand that the Police Community
18 Relation Organization and the precinct just completed
19 election of officer. I believe the new officer, Maurice
20 Goldston, president, and Michelle Roughen, vice
21 president, and I would like Commissioner Brown to
22 formally introduce them, if they might want to come
23 forward at this time.

24 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Okay. Can we have --
25 President Maurice Goldston, is he here?

1 MS. RUFFIN: No.

2 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Vice President Michelle
3 Ruffin. Recording Secretary Michelle Day, is she here?

4 MS. RUFFIN: She is not.

5 COMMISSIONER BROWN: And Betty Bostick, is
6 she here?

7 Okay, Michelle, you have the floor.

8 MS. RUFFIN: Hello, everybody. I am so
9 excited that we revamped our board, and we start --
10 we're starting all over, so we're looking forward to the
11 future of starting all over. So that's all I wanted to
12 say. Thank you very much for having us.

13 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: You as well.

14 CHAIRMAN BELL: At this time, I'm going to
15 start to my far right and ask the commissioners to
16 introduce themselves.

17 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you, Commissioner.
18 Annie Holt, Commissioner At-Large.

19 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Good evening.
20 Commissioner William Davis, District 7.

21 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Good evening.
22 Commissioner Shirley Burch, District 3.

23 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Elizabeth Brooks,
24 At-Large.

25 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Good evening. Of

1 course, you know, Darryl Brown, District 1, Vice Chair.

2 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Good evening. Lisa
3 Carter, District 6.

4 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Good evening. Jim
5 Holley, At-Large.

6 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Good evening. Eva
7 Dewaelsche, At-Large.

8 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Good evening. Evette
9 Griffie, District 2.

10 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you.

11 Mr. Hicks, do we have a quorum?

12 SECRETARY HICKS: Yes, Mr. Chair, you have a
13 quorum.

14 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. We're going to
15 move forward with the agenda for this evening' meeting.

16 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So moved.

17 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Support.

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Proper support.

19 Discussion.

20 Those in favor aye.

21 GROUP: Aye.

22 Those opposed.

23 Motion carried.

24 And approval of the minutes for May the 2nd,
25 2019.

1 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So moved.

2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Support.

3 CHAIRMAN BELL: Discussion.

4 Those in favor aye.

5 GROUP: Aye.

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: Those opposed.

7 Motion carried.

8 Mr. Hicks, our Board Secretary, would you
9 introduce the Board staff, please.

10 COMMISSIONER HICKS: Yes. Thank you,
11 Mr. Chairman.

12 I do want to indicate that Mr. Brown is away
13 from the city and sitting in for Mr. Brown is Theresa
14 Blossom, and Ms. Blossom will be performing the duties
15 that are normally associated with Mr. Brown's work here
16 at the table. And I also want to indicate that taping
17 tonight's meeting is Sergeant Quinn. Media Services is
18 providing the audio-visual work, and then Medina
19 Balderas is also the court reporter.

20 And if I can just simply go to the first row
21 and ask the members of the Public Safety Board of Police
22 Commissioners' staff to stand and introduce themselves.

23 MR. WYRICK: Jermaine Wyrick, Board
24 Attorney.

25 MS. WHITE: Good evening. Melanie White,

1 Executive Manager of Policy.

2 MS. JOHNSON: Good evening. Faye Johnson,
3 Board Financial.

4 MR. ANDERSON: Good evening. Dr. Marcella
5 Anderson, Police HR.

6 SECRETARY HICKS: And Dr. McCalister, who is
7 the Chief Investigator will not only introduce herself,
8 but the balance of the OCI staff.

9 DR. MCCALISTER: Good evening, Board. I'm
10 Dr. Polly McCalister. And attending tonight's meeting
11 with me is Supervisor and Investigator Akbar, Senior
12 Investigator Madrigal, Senior Investigator Sloan.
13 Senior investigator Nickels, and Investigator Stanton,
14 not yet, and Investigator Colby.

15 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you.

16 The next item would be our Deputy Chief, I
17 want to say -- Charles Fitzgerald?

18 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yes, sir.

19 CHAIRMAN BELL: -- sitting in for Chief
20 Craig. Would you introduce DPD staff, please.

21 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: I certainly will.
22 Actually, I'll have -- starting with Captain Tucker. If
23 you all could stand up and introduce yourselves.

24 CAPTAIN TUCKER: Captain Joe Tucker, 12th
25 precinct. How you guys doing.

1 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Lieutenant
2 Phillips.

3 LIEUTENANT PHILLIPS: Lieutenant Howard
4 Phillips, Investigation Internal Affairs.

5 CAPTAIN SOLANO: Captain Russell Solano, 4th
6 Precinct.

7 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Jacqueline Pritchett,
8 Commander, 8th Precinct.

9 COMMANDER KYRIACOU: Nick Kyriacou,
10 Commander, 10th Precinct.

11 CAPTAIN POTTS: LaShanna Potts, Captain, 6th
12 Precinct.

13 CAPTAIN MOUNSEY: Brian Mounsey, second in
14 command.

15 CAPTAIN SVEC: John Svec, 10th Precinct.

16 CAPTAIN PURIFOY: Lena Purifoy, Captain,
17 Internal Controls.

18 OFFICER DENNIS: Michael Dennis, Homicide.

19 OFFICER COLES: James Coles, Lieutenant,
20 Police Recruiting.

21 SERGEANT WILLIE: Sergeant Willie, 8th
22 Precinct.

23 LIEUTENANT MUHAMMAD: Grandmont Community.

24 OFFICER COLEMAN: Neighborhood Police
25 Officer Baron Coleman, 8th Precinct.

1 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Mr. Chairman, I
2 believe that's it.

3 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you.

4 Do we have any elected officials?

5 COUNCILMAN MCCALISTER: City Council, Warren
6 McCalister, District 2.

7 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you.

8 Any other elected officials or
9 representative of elected officials?

10 MR. BOWMAN: Scotty Bowman, Precinct
11 Delegate.

12 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you.

13 Any civic leaders or representatives of
14 civic leaders?

15 If not, we're going to move on. Yes, sir.

16 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Mr. Stokes.

17 CHAIRMAN BELL: Good evening.

18 MR. STOKES: Alvin Stokes, President of
19 City-Wide Police Community Relations Council.

20 CHAIRMAN BELL: Any others? Last chance.

21 Yes, sir.

22 MR. LIDDELL: James Liddell, President of
23 Grandmont Patroller Number 4.

24 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you.

25 Also tonight, we have Mr. Luther Keith, a

1 person with a great history in our community as a
2 journalist and community organizer. And Mr. Keith has
3 worked with Commissioner Shirley Burch in ARISE.
4 Mr. Luther Keith is also a member of the family of the
5 recent Judge Damon Keith. Luther is here to accept a
6 resolution for the family of Judge Keith honoring Judge
7 Keith' many contributions to our Nation.

8 As indicated in our last meeting, with great
9 pride balanced with great sadness that I acknowledge the
10 recent passing of one of the most important jurists of
11 our time United States Federal District Judge Damon J.
12 Keith. Judge Keith stands in the same light as United
13 States Supreme Court Justice Thurgood Marshall,
14 nationally and locally, both men have shaped the nation
15 as we moved through some of the most challenging events
16 of our lives. The ramification and their work touched
17 every walk of life notwithstanding each person's
18 economics, plight, heritage or choice or lifestyle.
19 Judge Keith placed a stamp on important of our time,
20 including issues relating to Affirmative Action, school
21 desegregation and employment discrimination.

22 In one case, Baker v the City of Detroit,
23 the opposition claimed that Judge Keith was unfit to
24 hear an Affirmative Action case because of his
25 friendship with Mayor Coleman A. Young. This opposition

1 used the long-term friendship and the common struggles
2 against racial discrimination shared by Judge Keith and
3 Mayor Young as a method to remove the judge from the
4 case. That effort failed, and we went forward with
5 Affirmative Action promotion -- I should say hiring,
6 promotion, and we all had an opportunity on a fair
7 plain.

8 In fact, I can speak personally to that
9 because I was one of the first sergeants to be promoted
10 under that concept in 1976. I don't know if any others
11 in the room can witness that, but I was in the police
12 department as a five-year rookie officer almost out of
13 the 7th Precinct, and I studied and I studied and I
14 studied. When that particular action was upheld, I was
15 promoted, and there was a balance for white and black in
16 terms of that whole Affirmative Action as we went
17 forward with sergeant, lieutenant and higher rank. And
18 the rest is history, and that's why when you see the
19 department today, it reflects that type of legal effort
20 and that type of commitment from Coleman A. Young, and
21 Judge Keith made the major decision to allow that in
22 terms of the case that was fought long and hard in
23 opposition to it. And you can read more about it, but I
24 just wanted to share that with you.

25 Additionally, in *Bratton v City of Detroit*,

1 another challenge of Affirmative Action in Detroit, the
2 opposition failed to stop Affirmative hiring practices
3 initiated by Mayor Young. Both cases are known for the
4 judgement that the Detroit Police Department employed a
5 consistent overt policy of intentional discrimination
6 against blacks in all phases of the operation.

7 For those acquainted with Detroit at this
8 time, Mayor Young was the most popular mayor to sit in
9 City Hall. Judge Crockett was the most powerful local
10 judge and Judge Damon Keith was the most popular federal
11 district judge. It's very likely that each of these men
12 knew of the other's work and, thus, developed
13 friendships. Judge Keith and Mayor Young are also known
14 to have the ability to interact with people of common
15 standings and walk among workers, poor people, students
16 and neighbors.

17 The public visitation of Judge Damon J.
18 Keith will be on Saturday, May 11th, Charles H. Wright
19 Museum of African American History from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.
20 And you know when they was in financial trouble, who
21 pulled the people together that had impact on finance to
22 make a difference? Judge Damon Keith.

23 I know you know the history, right? I just
24 want to share that with you.

25 **A funeral will follow on Monday, May the**

1 13th at Hartford Memorial Baptist Church, 18700 James
2 Couzens. We all know where Hartford is located, and
3 that's on Monday.

4 My report: On behalf of the Board, I want
5 to express our concerns for fallen and injured officers.
6 Our concern for officer safety and civil protection is
7 ranked as two of the most important priorities of the
8 Board. Our Board will receive a weekly report from the
9 department listing each injured officer.

10 I would ask the Deputy Chief during his
11 remarks to provide us with any additional information
12 related to injured or fallen officers.

13 The Board of Police Commissioners meet every
14 week except for Thanksgiving and Christmas holiday
15 period. We meet at police headquarters three weeks of
16 the month on Thursday at 3 p.m. We also meet in the
17 community every second Thursday of the month at 6:30
18 p.m., like tonight.

19 Under the Detroit City Charter, Article 7,
20 Chapter 8, the Board of Police Commissioners is
21 empowered to provide civilian oversight and supervisory
22 control of the police department. Our citizens are
23 justified in asking how does Civilian Oversight of Law
24 Enforcement help you as a citizen within our community?
25 Our answer is we protect the Civil Rights of citizens.

1 Oversight organizations like the BOPC are at the
2 forefront of investigating, reviewing and auditing
3 individual cases of citizens complaints and patterns of
4 operations by police agencies to eliminate misconduct,
5 discriminatory police practices and unnecessary use of
6 force by police. Our work is based on the developing
7 and supporting effective policing. Mutual trust and
8 respect between the police and the community is critical
9 towards increasing the quality of life for residents and
10 visitors to Detroit. The Board of Police Commissioners
11 exists to provide civilian oversight for the work of
12 DPD. As a Board, we receive and investigate non
13 criminal citizen complaints, monitor the operations of
14 the Department and work with the Mayor and the Chief of
15 Police to make or modify police policy.

16 Additionally, I want to point to several
17 important items for your consideration and information.
18 Again, I remind the Board, we'll continue to work with
19 NACOLE, the National Association of Civilian Oversight
20 of Law Enforcement to host a national conference on
21 September 22nd through the 26th, 2019 in Detroit.
22 During the same time, Detroit will be celebrating our
23 45th year as a civilian oversight organization on July
24 the 22nd, 2019 . We're inviting law enforcement and
25 other civic-minded individuals and organizations to join

1 us at the conference. The planning process is well on
2 the way, and, again, we invite your participation.
3 Please note the staff recently transmitted a copy of the
4 volunteer information sheet for the NACOLE conference
5 and our 45th anniversary of civilian oversight agency.
6 A copy of this sheet is in your package. Please use
7 this sheet to recruit volunteers.

8 In our June community meeting, we will be
9 electing new officers for the Board of Police
10 Commissioners. This notification is 30 days in advance
11 of the actual election. The election, as provided by
12 our Bylaws, is held annually at our second Thursday
13 meeting in June.

14 I want to acknowledge that the Chief of
15 Police has transmitted two proposed directives. The
16 first is Directive Number 204.4 on the use of force and
17 detainee injury reporting and investigation. The
18 second, Directive 304.7 is on Taser X2 and conducted
19 energy weapons. Also, Assistant Chief of Police James
20 White transmitted answers to the Board's questions on
21 disciplinary administration. A copy of the ten
22 questions and responses are in your package.

23 Today we have two presentations. The first
24 is the normal monthly report from DPD HR, Dr. Anderson,
25 report presented by Dr. Anderson, Director of DPD

1 Personnel. The second will be from the 8th Precinct.
2 It is my hope that the presentation will cover some of
3 the hot spots in the precinct and strategy to fight
4 crime. Commander Jacqueline Pritchett and Captain
5 Darryl Patterson will be making the presentation. On
6 the DPD chief report, I am requesting an update on our
7 crime stats and any critical issues facing the police
8 department. I would ask the Assistant Chief Fitzgerald
9 spend a little time on the recent shooting in Greektown.
10 I also ask that AC -- should be DC Fitzgerald brief the
11 Board on any other outstanding issue relating to the
12 police department.

13 At the end of the meeting, we will have
14 public comment from the audience. Please make sure you
15 print your name on the speaker card. Cards are located
16 in back on the table or can be obtained by seeing Ms.
17 Theresa Blossom to my far right. She will need your
18 card before the beginning of public comments. We will
19 hold each speaker to the allotted two minutes. Finally,
20 I ask that everyone turn off your cell phone and other
21 electronic devices. This request does not include
22 devices held by DPD personnel as many of you all are on
23 emergency standby. I ask DPD personnel to put their
24 phone on vibrate so their ringing phones will not
25 interrupt our meeting.

1 Commissioner Willie Burton has joined us
2 about ten minutes ago. Thank you for your attendance
3 from District 5.

4 COMMISSIONER BURTON: That's inaccurate,
5 Mr. Chairman, but I am here, though, but the timing.

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: I stand corrected, whatever
7 time that you arrived, we appreciate you.

8 We gonna move to Commissioner Dewaelsche for
9 a resolution for Judge Keith.

10 COMMISSIONER DEWAEELSCHÉ: Mr. Keith, could
11 you join me in front. Thank you.

12 Thank you for coming tonight. It is my
13 distinct honor to read this resolution in recognition of
14 the Honorable Judge Damon Jerome Keith, United States
15 Circuit Judge of the United States Court of Appeals for
16 the 6th Circuit and a former United States District
17 Judge of the United States District Court for the
18 Eastern District of the Michigan. Posthumously.

19 Whereas, the City of Detroit has seen many
20 great trailblazers during more than three centuries of
21 existence and has chronicled remarkable achievements by
22 Detroiters as they reached pinnacles in professions and
23 industries which either shaped or changed the world and
24 the way we live. Even among such giants, one still may
25 show distinction by the breath and endurance of their

1 contributions. The Honorable Damon J. Keith was one
2 such person, because of his judicial record on Civil
3 Rights and their imprint on daily life now and into the
4 future.

5 Whereas, from humble beginnings in his
6 native Detroit, Damon Jerome Keith held deep beliefs in
7 fairness, equality and democracy, which seemed fated by
8 his birth on July 4th, 1922. He carried these strong
9 principles through graduation from Northwestern High
10 School and three universities, including law school
11 through service in the U.S. Army and into a career that
12 spanned private practice, cochairmanship of the Civil
13 Rights Commission and a pivotal role in bringing order
14 and calm during the Detroit Rebellion in July 1967.

15 And, whereas, President Lyndon Johnson
16 appointed Damon J. Keith to U.S. District Court in the
17 Eastern District of Michigan in September 1967, and
18 President Jimmy Carter later appointed Judge Keith to
19 the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 6th Circuit. In 1979,
20 he wrote the opinion that upheld Mayor Coleman Young's
21 Affirmative Action plan to integrate the Detroit Police
22 Department. Judge Keith erected many legal pillars
23 through his rulings, including desegregation, government
24 wire taps without warrants and government secret
25 deportation hearings. His vast impact is not only

1 captured and scholarly journals and law books, but also
2 in our daily freedoms and culture as evidenced by the
3 Washington Post using one of Judge Keith's quotes for
4 its current slogan, "Democracy Dies in Darkness".

5 And, whereas, Judge Damon Keith was a great
6 friend to Detroit and the Board of Police Commissioners
7 with many having the privilege of knowing him or
8 crossing paths with him on mutual work for Civil Rights
9 and accountability of our government and government
10 officials including police officers. Judge Keith
11 administered the oath to the police commissioners during
12 their swearing in ceremony in January 2018. He also was
13 serving as honorary host for Detroit's 45th Anniversary
14 of Civilian Oversight as we mark, in 2019, both the
15 first meeting of the Board in 1974 and the first time
16 Detroit is hosting the National Association of Civilian
17 Oversight of Law Enforcement Conference. Judge Keith
18 felt it important to give his support to the Board and
19 to NACOLE because, at age 96, he remained as active and
20 engaged in the unending work of protecting rights and
21 ensuring justice.

22 Therefore be it resolved, that the Board of
23 Police Commissioners, speaking on behalf of the police
24 department and the citizens of Detroit, salute the life
25 and legacy of Judge Damon Keith. This city and this

1 nation were very fortunate to have such a caring, wise
2 and honorable man presiding at the junction of justice.
3 We wish him Godspeed and extend condolences and prayers
4 to his family and friends.

5 MR. KEITH: Thank you.

6 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I move for adoption of
7 the resolution.

8 SEVERAL MALE SPEAKERS: Support.

9 CHAIRMAN BELL: Been properly moved and
10 supported.

11 Discussion?

12 Those in favor aye.

13 GROUP: Aye.

14 CHAIRMAN BELL: Opposed?

15 Motion carried.

16 And when you finish your remarks, I'm going
17 to ask all the commissioners to come up because this is
18 an historical moment.

19 And, Mr. Keith, we really appreciate you
20 taking time out of your schedule and all that's going on
21 to come to this meeting.

22 MR. KEITH: Thank you.

23 First of all, I just want to thank, on
24 behalf of the Keith family, Board of Police
25 Commissioners, who I have had the pleasure of knowing

1 many of you and admire your work, and I want to thank
2 the community and citizens of Detroit. It's been an
3 amazing time since my uncle has passed, the kind of love
4 that we have felt from all over the nation, particularly
5 from this community where he lived his entire life. And
6 I can only say thank you.

7 He was my uncle. He loved me. I grew up
8 with him playing baseball in the alleys with me, with me
9 brothers and cousins just being my uncle. When I got
10 older, I learned that he was really an amazing jurist.
11 He tried to talk me into going to law school, but my
12 brother did that. I became a journalist. But I just
13 want to say thank you. It's been amazing to see. And
14 I've been on a lot of TV shows and radio shows the last
15 few days, and one thing, I will say this, after you
16 grieve for my uncle and his contributions, do what he
17 did. You know, he lived his life I believe in fairness,
18 justice and equal opportunity. And no matter what you
19 do and wherever you're working at, pledge to do that,
20 because he lived by these words of the Constitution,
21 Equal Justice Under Law For Everybody. That's why he
22 made that decision that the Washington Post's quoted.

23 So I can only say thank you again to the
24 Board of Police Commissioners. I know the family will
25 be thrilled to have this, and thank you so much. I'm

1 honored to be here.

2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Can we ask city
3 council members to join us too.

4 CHAIRMAN BELL: I just want to make one more
5 remark, if I may. How many attended the annual NAACP
6 Freedom Fund Dinner? You know, I mean, it's normally
7 one of the largest in the country. As you all know,
8 Judge Keith was the founding member of that dinner --

9 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Right.

10 CHAIRMAN BELL: -- and I had opportunity to
11 serve two terms on NAACP Board (inaudible) Chapter and
12 saw the interaction, but it was just his long longevity
13 and one of the -- Denise Page Hood, Chief Judge of the
14 Federal Court District, indicated that he was still
15 active. In the last couple years, he made a major
16 ruling in reference to Ohio.

17 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Yeah.

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: I mean, you can see that --
19 I mean, Thurgood Marshall asked a question why was he
20 retiring from the bench, Supreme Court, he stated I'm
21 old. But as you well know, his legacy live on. So I
22 just want -- when you think about the Freedom Fund
23 Dinner, which is major, because they've tried to
24 duplicate that in other cities; they was not able to
25 achieve that. But -- some of them have a smaller scale,

1 but I just want -- I mean, we all should be life members
2 of the NAACP in some form another because we are
3 indebted. I know some of you folks will say, well, I
4 don't see the work, I don't see the work, you know,
5 well, you must be blind. Ray Charles witness his work.
6 Stevie Wonder witnessed his work. We know. I know
7 Reverend Holley is part of that legacy who made a
8 difference and is still making a difference in Detroit
9 in terms of ministering alliance in the city of Detroit.
10 I just want to share that with you, so if you have
11 people ask why they should support it, because this
12 young man supported that from inception of pulling that
13 together, and --

14 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: This a personal point,
15 Damon Keith and I were neighbors. He died at
16 ninety-six, but at ninety, I would go to the gym, he'd
17 be already up on the treadmill. I'd get there, he's
18 already on the treadmill. And when I leave, he's still
19 on the treadmill, and it's just most likely attributed a
20 lot to his longevity because he believed in running.

21 But a great guy and certainly a loss, a
22 great loss. Thank you for that privilege.

23 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. We going to move
24 on to the next item, a resolution, Kristopher Shina.
25 Commissioner Brown, the Vice Chair, going to read the

1 resolution. If you would come forward, we would
2 appreciate it.

3 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Bell, Chairman, I'm
4 going to accept on behalf.

5 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am. You come out
6 front, make it official. Okay, thank you.

7 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Resolution honoring Mr.
8 Kristopher Shina.

9 Mr. Kristopher Shina is a loving and
10 committed husband to Reta and the dedicated father to
11 Annabelle, Adam and Emmanuel.

12 And, whereas, Mr. Shina has been a dedicated
13 business owner of Apollo Foods for fifteen years. His
14 dedication, love and commitment for his family and
15 business is reflected by the work he does in the
16 community.

17 And, whereas, Mr. Shina is a true pillar in
18 the advancement of this community and dedicated
19 supporter in the city of Detroit. His commitment to the
20 overall well-being of the community does not only
21 include his work with the Detroit Police Department, but
22 also his efforts working along with the Detroit Fire
23 Department as well as the various community groups.

24 And, whereas, Mr. Shina is committed to
25 assisting the Detroit Police Department in any way he

1 can, such as donating to the 8th Precinct neighborhood
2 police officers both monetarily and food donations from
3 his grocery stores, Apollo Foods. These donations were
4 utilized for different community initiatives throughout
5 the year. Mr. Shina has also established a community
6 outreach department at his place of business and has
7 appointed a liaison. He and his community liaison
8 appointee have worked tirelessly with the Detroit Police
9 and Fire Departments and they assisted other community
10 groups with the same excitement, vigor and commitment.
11 In addition, Mr. Shina holds an annual turkey give away
12 where he passes out turkeys to hundreds of families in
13 need.

14 And, whereas, the community service that Mr.
15 Shina exemplifies is the type of business leader that
16 most residents of this community would want in their
17 neighborhood. And he is considered a stand-up citizen,
18 always passionate about people. He prides himself in
19 living by the motto "Treat Others "As You Would Want to
20 Be Treated".

21 Now, therefore, be it resolved that the
22 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners speaking for the
23 citizens of the city of Detroit and the Detroit Police
24 Department acknowledges his dedicated, diligent,
25 committed support of Mr. Kristopher Shina. His service

1 and devotion to improving the quality of life for the
2 citizens of the 8th Precinct and throughout the city of
3 Detroit merits our highest regards. The Board of Police
4 Commissioners accountability through Civilian Oversight.

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you, Mr. Shina.

6 Through the Honorable Chair and Commissioner
7 Brown and to my fellow colleagues, I would just like to
8 say on behalf of Mr. Shina, I'm honored to receive this
9 for him because I'm their public relations
10 representative. So the things that they do at Apollo
11 and all of the other four Imperial Markets comes through
12 my service. And that is on Commander Mounsey, he knows
13 that, and Commander Pritchett, working together in the
14 community to what the Shinas do. Because they want to
15 show that they're not just in the city to collect, but
16 they also give back and they also work out of Greater
17 Grace. So it's our honor again to accept this for Kris,
18 I will give it to him and they will prominently place it
19 in Apollo. And I thank you for him.

20 CHAIRMAN BELL: All right.

21 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Mr. Chair.

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

23 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I move for the
24 adoption of the resolution.

25 GROUP: Support.

1 CHAIRMAN BELL: Been properly moved and
2 supported.

3 Discussion?

4 Those in favor aye.

5 GROUP: Aye.

6 Opposed?

7 Motion carried.

8 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Since you're
9 accepting, I've got two more for you. This one for Mr.
10 Shina is Spirit of Detroit Award signed by all nine
11 Warren McCalister; that one is dated May 9th, 2019. And
12 then lastly, I have a Certificate of Recognition for Mr.
13 Kristopher Shina signed by the Chief James Craig.

14 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you. Thank you.

15 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Could Councilman
16 McCalister also come up, please.

17 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. Now, I
18 understand Commissioner Burch' reach because she's a
19 Northeastsider in the 11th Precinct.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I'm all the way over
21 here.

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: But (inaudible) is citywide,
23 so we appreciate that. And that's involvement.

24 And now we going to move on to a very
25 important item, towing resolution for returning

1 resident, and Commissioner Dewaelsche is going to read
2 the resolution.

3 Yes, ma'am.

4 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. This
5 is a resolution to amend tow economic hardship relief
6 policy allowing returning Detroit residents as drivers
7 for private tow companies.

8 Whereas, on February 15th, 2019, the City of
9 Detroit passed an ordinance entitled Fair Chance Access
10 to Rental Housing to stop discrimination practices
11 against citizens who have criminal records and are
12 returning to society to ensure those citizens have fair
13 opportunities in all housing endeavors.

14 Whereas, on September 20th, 2018, the Board
15 of Police Commissioners approved a resolution
16 authorizing the Detroit Police Department to operate
17 motor vehicle storage facilities and towing operations,
18 and on January 17, 2019, in consultation with the
19 Detroit Police Department, the Board approved a
20 resolution to approve the Tow Economic Hardship
21 Guidelines.

22 And, whereas, the Board supports fair access
23 to employment and fair hiring practices and strongly
24 condemns hiring practices that discriminate against
25 returning citizens or any of the protected classes,

1 including, but not limited to, race, color, national
2 origin, age, disability, sex, religion.

3 And, whereas, the Board has received
4 information questioning the rationale for a difference
5 in hiring practices between public and private tow
6 companies.

7 And, whereas, it is the policy of the City
8 of Detroit to incorporate ban-the-box policies and treat
9 returning citizens fair and equitable in all employment-
10 and housing-related endeavors among other quality of
11 life matters.

12 Therefore, be it resolved that the Detroit
13 Board of Police Commissioners unanimously approved a
14 resolution amending the Tow Rules to specifically
15 support the City's policy on ban-the-box, requiring fair
16 and equal hiring practices amongst all tow companies
17 regarding its employees and applicants for employment,
18 including returning citizens. The Board amends its Tow
19 Rules to specifically incorporate a new rule requiring
20 tow companies to allow, upon review of criminal history
21 and warrant status, returning City of Detroit residents
22 to become employed with its companies. Our Board wants
23 the City of Detroit residents to know they will receive
24 fair and equitable treatment and access to all
25 employment opportunities. Moreover, while specifically

1 making a rule to align with the City's policy
2 prohibiting discrimination against returning citizens,
3 the Board urges all companies to ban-the-box.

4 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Mr. Chair, I move for
5 adoption.

6 GROUP: Support.

7 CHAIRMAN BELL: Been moved and supported.
8 Discussion?

9 Those in favor?

10 GROUP: Aye.

11 CHAIRMAN BELL: Those opposed?

12 Motion passed. Resolution.

13 Thank you. I think this was very important
14 to the citizens of Detroit, returning citizens have that
15 opportunity. And I want to thank for Mayor Duggan's
16 support and Chief Craig's support in terms of us being
17 able to initiate the change in our rule.

18 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the Chair.

19 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

20 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Commissioner Holt.

21 CHAIRMAN BELL: Oh, I'm sorry.

22 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Obviously this is an
23 opportunity for the City of Detroit, as you've
24 expressed, to show our concern for the employment of
25 citizens in the city. Now, it might be worth noting

1 that there is a new state rep in Lansing known as
2 Cynthia Johnson. Now, she has authored the House Bill
3 4326, which is also an opportunity to have the State get
4 in on this discussion. And if you know anything about
5 Cynthia Johnson, State Rep Cynthia Johnson, it probably
6 won't happen, and her bill is also about ban-the-box.

7 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. We appreciate
8 that.

9 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Sure.

10 CHAIRMAN BELL: Maybe we can take initiative
11 to write and be supportive of that.

12 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Yes, it might be a
13 consideration.

14 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, I understand.

15 And we going to move on to Deputy Chief
16 Fitzgerald reporting on behalf of Chief Craig.

17 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Thank you,
18 Chairperson Bell. On behalf of Chief Craig, he sends
19 his regrets for tonight's meeting. I'm going to go
20 through the crime stats for you.

21 As of this morning for criminal homicides.
22 We are down sixteen from last year, which is a
23 twenty-one percent decrease. Our sexual assaults were
24 up forty-three compared to last year, which is a
25 sixteen-percent increase. Our nonfatal shootings, we

1 were down twenty-four over the last year, which is a
2 twelve-percent decrease. Our robberies and car jackings
3 continue to trend in the right direction. For
4 robberies, were down eighty-two, which is an
5 eleven-percent decrease. And for car jackings, we're
6 down thirty-seven for a thirty-nine-percent decrease.
7 And if you look at Part 1, property crime, down toward
8 the bottom, we show an overall reduction of eight
9 percent for burglaries, larcenies and motor vehicle
10 thefts.

11 Just one second, I'll have Captain McGinnis
12 come up and give you a brief synopsis on the Greektown
13 shootings.

14 But as far as the officers, Officer James
15 Kisselburg is awaiting an effective approval date for
16 his duty disability from the shooting he was involved in
17 quite some time ago. Waldace Johnson from Number 2 is
18 still recovering under the long-term care facility.
19 Officer Christopher Thurston is recuperating at home and
20 also through occupational home therapy; his next medical
21 appointment will be sometime in June. Officer Lemuel
22 Simms of the 2nd Precinct who injured both of his knees
23 during a foot chase is still out, and he's not due back
24 until probably some type in mid July, hopefully; we're
25 hoping. And then both Officers Painter and Trozak of

1 the 3rd Precinct were involved in a pretty physical
2 altercation and suffered critical injuries, and they're
3 both still out recovering at home.

4 Captain McGinnis, do you have an update?

5 CAPTAIN MCGINNIS: Yes. Through the Chair,
6 Captain Michael McGinnis.

7 With the Greektown incident, with community
8 support, we were successful in making two arrests. The
9 facts and circumstances of that incident are currently
10 under review by the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office and
11 we're optimistic that charges will be issued. The
12 shooter in that incident is in custody, and we are very
13 thankful for the support.

14 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Through the Chair.

15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT PATRICK: Yes, ma'am.

16 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: There seems to be
17 recently a large amount of shootings in Greektown. Is
18 there something that's -- is there something that has
19 changed about the environment, or is there something
20 about the activity that is happening there, is my first
21 question. Second, is there concerted efforts to reduce
22 that from the police department.

23 CAPTAIN MCGINNIS: I can answer that not as
24 an expert, but as my opinion. I think we're seeing
25 increased activity in Greektown and in the Downtown area

1 entirely as the city is coming back from sometimes that
2 weren't so great. So I actually just stayed Downtown
3 last weekend myself, and it was a marvelous experience.
4 I would relate it to travels that I've done across the
5 Nation in other major cities. It was just great.

6 As far as policing Downtown, I know through
7 the summer months we increase patrol in the Greektown
8 area, and I expect that that's going to occur this year
9 as well.

10 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: So I guess one
11 follow-up question is I agree Downtown is very safe and
12 well policed. Something about Greektown -- and maybe
13 this is more your office could answer that -- something
14 about Greektown, it's a small area. I know a few
15 blocks, but there does seem to be an increase lately,
16 and I would like to let constituents know, you know,
17 because they hear this over the news. Is there
18 something specific happening, is there lack of -- you
19 know, is there something that is not there that is in
20 other parts of Downtown or something that's happening
21 there that's not happening in other parts of Downtown?

22 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: No, nothing that
23 truly stands out. There is some small sidewalks that
24 makes it difficult to pass. It's very congested
25 pedestrian traffic wise. We staff it very strongly,

1 enough that we have command officers down there on the
2 weekend working all weekend long. So we'll continue to
3 provide as much support as we possibly can down there to
4 keep it safe for everyone.

5 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I just want to say
8 that I admire the efforts that DPD have made as far as
9 stepping up patrol in the Greektown area and other
10 sectors of the city as well. It was Former Chief --
11 Assistant Chief Dolan once said that the police
12 department cannot police the pity. So when you got
13 people coming Downtown that don't want to, you know,
14 behave, then we going to have these type of situations.
15 The problem is not DPD. They doing their job, I mean,
16 they stepped up patrol, they stepped their game up, they
17 got some of their best and brightest officers out there.

18 I'm really impressed with Downtown services.
19 I'm really impressed with the men and women over there
20 in 3 as far as what they're doing and also those
21 officers that are working the beat as well as those that
22 work in secondary employment in the Downtown area. So,
23 I mean, look at what Downtown is today, I mean, you got
24 one incident or maybe two incidents that may take place
25 throughout the year that you may hear about, but you

1 should see what the officers -- how they move those --
2 move people along and move the traffic along and how
3 they really take the time to talk to people; that goes a
4 long way.

5 Once again, as I think the problem is not
6 that we got too many officers in one area. I think DPD
7 is doing a great job as far as how they have their
8 officers sprouted -- you know, spread out widely across
9 the Downtown area. You got so much going on when the
10 Tigers are in town, the Red Wings are in town, the
11 Pistons are in town, or something going on at the Fox, I
12 mean, you know -- you know -- you know, I -- I -- I
13 really commend the work and the efforts that Detroit
14 Police Department is doing as far as to ensure safety,
15 quality of safety for all of us, not those that just
16 visiting Downtown, but those that live in the city,
17 those that are visiting the city for the first time.

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, Commissioner
19 Burton. I just want to move on.

20 Yes, sir, Commissioner Holley.

21 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I went down there
22 after the incident and talked to some people that --
23 from -- one of the concerns that they were saying --
24 doesn't mean that it's right, it's just -- I'm just --
25 at some point, the lack of police officers, in other

1 words, there's a point they seem to know when you're not
2 heavily present versus when you are present.

3 And at this particular time, can you tell
4 us, was that the case of during the shooting, that
5 it was -- for some reason or another, it's the lack of
6 presence of police officers? The response wasn't that
7 bad, I mean, it wasn't that bad in terms of getting
8 there, but this what three merchants told me.

9 CAPTAIN MCGINNIS: I don't believe that
10 there's any factual basis for that. The incidents that
11 I'm aware of in Greektown have all occurred when we've
12 been heavily staffed down there. As a matter of fact, I
13 believe we have closed and solved all of the incidents
14 from Downtown at Greektown.

15 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Okay.

16 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: To add a little
17 bit more on this one, there were six police officers
18 within thirty feet of the shooting.

19 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair. I
20 just --

21 CHAIRMAN BELL: Commissioner Burton, you
22 made your point. I want to give other commissioners
23 opportunities, could you just pause.

24 Do any other commissioners want to speak?

25 Yes, Commissioner Davis.

1 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I want to speak on
2 something else.

3 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir.

4 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Deputy Chief, last
5 meeting, Assistant Chief White said he was going to get
6 back when I asked for a report on over -- there was a
7 City Charter Commission meeting at the Farwell, and
8 there was an overabundance of police officers at one
9 point, and he indicated he was going to come back with a
10 report. Do you have it?

11 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: I do not have it,
12 but I can make sure you get it.

13 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay, I'm still
14 anticipating it.

15 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: I will have it for
16 you, sir.

17 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Mr. Chair.

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir.

19 COMMISSIONER BROWN: When the rotation and
20 change of shift's happening -- and this is what I'm
21 hearing -- is that they seem to know when there's a
22 shift change and officers are coming out, and that seems
23 to be the gap of when things happen.

24 So is there any way of addressing that that
25 we're not pulling them off the street? Maybe they can

1 have roll call, the come out maybe they can do a shift
2 exchange there, or, you know, come from the unit, you
3 know, ready to go and not pull the officers off the
4 street and have that exchange? I know that's a typical
5 practice of what's going on, but is there any way that
6 we could change that? Because it seems like that's when
7 things are happening, when they seem to know that
8 there's a shift change and there's no presence, there's
9 no police presence that are there. Or do we need to
10 have an overlapping shift to keep the presence there
11 until we get to full --

12 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Captain, I can
13 answer that one.

14 Yes, through the Chair, sir, we do run
15 overlap across the board, all precincts, all shifts. We
16 now dispatch to the hour. Where before our off-duty
17 time was quarter to, we dispatch to the hour, they stay
18 past the hour. So we also have overlap shifts through
19 special operations, off platoon shift, so we're covering
20 that as well, sir.

21 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Thank you.

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. Did I see
23 another hand up here?

24 Commissioner Burton, one final comment,
25 please.

1 COMMISSIONER BURTON: You know,
2 Mr. Chairman, I do say that, you know, we should look at
3 the timing here. Detroit Police Department did a great
4 job as far as making a timely arrest, you know, bringing
5 this person, you know, into custody, so, you know,
6 that's, you know, something to be applauding your
7 Detroit Police Department for. For the timeliness, I
8 think they did a great job as far as making that arrest,
9 and they also done a great job as far as beefing up
10 security in the Greektown area.

11 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you.

12 CAPTAIN MCGINNIS: Thank you.

13 CHAIRMAN BELL: Any other questions for the
14 Deputy Chief? Any other concerns?

15 Thank you, Deputy Chief.

16 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry
17 to bother you.

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir.

19 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: But I asked a couple
20 weeks or months or something ago about sending cards and
21 messages to the officers that are sick and shut in --

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: -- and convalescence
24 homes. Has that been done? Can you just see if the
25 office can follow through up on that for me, if you

1 would, please?

2 CHAIRMAN BELL: Well, I will inform you how
3 that process should work, I'll definitely talk --

4 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Very good.

5 CHAIRMAN BELL: -- we'll talk on that
6 particular matter. Thank you.

7 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I'm just talking about
8 sending cards now.

9 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, I know, I know.

10 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Okay, okay.

11 CHAIRMAN BELL: It's a little more
12 complicated than that in terms of how we can manage
13 certain things, but we will definitely go there, and I
14 appreciate you reminding us of that, that that is
15 something we should do.

16 We going to move on now to Dr. Anderson's HR
17 report, please.

18 Thank you, Deputy Chief.

19 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yes, sir.

20 CHAIRMAN BELL: Okay, appreciate it.

21 DR. ANDERSON: And good evening Honorable
22 Board. I'm giving you the monthly report for the month
23 of April.

24 For our current department staffing, we have
25 a total of 2,640 positions, 2,479 are filled, 161 sworn

1 positions are vacant. We have 701 civilian positions;
2 631 are filled, 70 are vacant. For our sworn recruiting
3 from July 1st, 2018, to April 30th, 2019, we've had
4 3,152 applicants, 345 are awaiting their MCOLES written
5 and physical agility testing, 54 are in process. We've
6 hired 112, we have 359 listed as lack of interest, 1,700
7 listed as temporary disqualified and 582 as permanently
8 disqualified.

9 On Page 2 of the report, for the MCOLES
10 testing, we had, for the month of April, 46 scheduled
11 for the written exam; 30 passed, 10 failed, 6 were no
12 shows. For the physical agility, we had 142 applicants
13 scheduled; 47 passed, 48 failed, 47 were no shows. The
14 48 that failed were offered conditioning --
15 reconditioning with our recruiting officers.

16 Police academy graduates for the month of
17 April, we had 19. Total new hires, sworn, 28, civilians
18 21, police assistants 3, for total new hires for the
19 months other of April 52. For residency for the City of
20 Detroit, we have 571 sworn officers who live in the
21 city, 359 civilians, and 34 police assistants. Non
22 Detroit residence, we have 1,846 for sworn, civilians
23 272, and police assistants 27.

24 Currently, we are working on the student
25 internship program. It was my hope that we would get it

1 going by spring. However, it has been pushed to the
2 fall. We -- for our attrition for the month of April,
3 we lost 19 sworn officers, 10 civilians, 0 police
4 assistants. Leave of absence and restricted duty for
5 continuous FMLA, for sworn officers, we have 11,
6 civilian staff 4, intermittent FMLA sworn officers 78,
7 civilian staff members 87. For medical, we have one
8 sworn officer that is off on medical, and we have three
9 civilians off on medical, three sworn officers off on
10 military. And for restricted duties, we have sworn
11 officers 124, and disabled 36.

12 Sworn personnel suspension, we have 12
13 police officers that are suspended; 1 detective, 1
14 sergeant, 1 command officers, for a total of 15. For
15 our DROP program, we have 555 officers that are
16 participating in the DROP program.

17 Board, that is my report for the month of
18 April.

19 CHAIRMAN BELL: Commissioners, any there any
20 questions or concerns for Dr. Anderson?

21 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yeah, Mr. Chair.

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Dr. Anderson, I was
24 looking at your numbers on hirees, you have
25 disqualified, you have permanently disqualified 582.

1 And what I'd like to find out is how many of those --
2 what I'm hearing is that -- a new term and titles is
3 coming up coming up across my eyes are -- some are being
4 disqualified for police contact. What I would like to
5 know is what is that and what are -- do we have a
6 spreadsheet that shows what are the reasons these
7 applicants are being disqualified, are they broken down
8 and separated? And just specifically under the police
9 contact, if someone can tell me exactly, what is that?

10 DR. ANDERSON: Well, we do have a
11 spreadsheet, Lieutenant Coast can speak to you more
12 specifically about police contact. We have a
13 spreadsheet that separates why a person is disqualified.

14 LIEUTENANT COLES: Good evening, through the
15 Board, Lieutenant Coles, Detroit Police recruiting.

16 When we talk about police contacts, what
17 you're talking about is, during our investigation of the
18 candidate when it gets into the background phase, we
19 have to run a police check of where the candidate lives,
20 where the candidate works, where the candidate has gone
21 to school. When we do that check, we get information
22 from each of the police departments telling us when
23 they've run across the candidate for any reason. When
24 you look at police contacts, it may depend on exactly
25 what they were stopped for or what they were

1 investigated for. It's not just traffic stops and it
2 actually doesn't include traffic stops, for the most
3 part. It includes things to the nature when we had one
4 of our candidates who just recently was -- hasn't been
5 disqualified yet, but he's in the process and we're
6 investigating. But his brother got pulled over, he went
7 to the place where his brother was pulled over, pulled
8 up on the police officers telling them that he was in
9 the Academy for six weeks and advising them, telling
10 them like this is my brother as if that would have them
11 stop their investigation, and then he became belligerent
12 with the officer. They had the supervisor come to the
13 scene as well and was belligerent, you know, with the
14 supervisor.

15 So those would be something that would fall
16 under police contact. It doesn't have to be a multitude
17 of contacts, but it could be as few as one or much more.
18 But it all depends on the totality of the circumstances
19 as to what happened during the investigation and how
20 many investigations it is. In some instances, it could
21 be one; in some instances, it could be ten.

22 We also have times where you have somebody
23 who was -- like say for instance you arrested for
24 possession, you know, they might have like five
25 possession arrests, but they never got convicted. So

1 this is a person who says, well, I don't have any
2 convictions on my record, but the contacts that you've
3 had through the police department or with your police
4 agencies would disqualify this individual.

5 Just one other thing, if you don't mind,
6 sir, they're not always permanent disqualification for
7 police contacts. In some instances, we might have, you
8 know, you go a year or two without police contact and
9 then we'll make another determination at that time.

10 COMMISSIONER BROWN: So how long do this
11 information -- let's just talk about Michigan -- how
12 long would this information that's entered into the LEIN
13 system, how long does it stay in the system? Does it
14 ever fall off or does it have stuff in there that I did
15 back in 1962.

16 LIEUTENANT COLES: Well, most of this stuff
17 doesn't necessarily have to do with LEIN system. In
18 some instances, again, when you have contacts with your
19 police agencies, those things may not go into LEIN. So
20 I can't tell you specifically how long LEIN is, but in
21 most instances, this isn't just a LEIN situation. It's
22 any contact that you had. So that's why we specifically
23 contacting the different departments where you live,
24 where you've gone to school, where you used to live, so
25 we can see what's happened then. Because a lot of times

1 it's not in LEIN, so that is not something we would just
2 readily pull up when we do your LEIN check.

3 COMMISSIONER BROWN: So --

4 LIEUTENANT COLES: About the spreadsheet?

5 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yeah.

6 LIEUTENANT COLES: No, we do not have a
7 spreadsheet for our permanent disqualifications that
8 specifically breaks down each one, because that 500
9 disqualifications could go back to 2011, it could go
10 back further. It's just a general this is how many
11 people have been disqualified. So sometimes somebody
12 has been disqualified before, they reapply, because
13 their situation hasn't changed, you know, they might
14 still have -- well, a felony conviction, for instance,
15 they'll reapply thinking that, you know, maybe I'll get
16 another shot at it. So they'll still come up as a
17 conviction. So we don't have a specific each one of
18 them broken down, but we do have the different types of
19 categories that we have for permanent disqualifications.

20 COMMISSIONER BROWN: I'd like to contact you
21 to take a look at that.

22 And then, Mr. Chair, if you don't mind, I
23 would like to maybe start a task force to look into
24 these things, working through the Board and maybe
25 through the Public Safety Committee through City Council

1 to really evaluate these issues. Because as young black
2 men in this city, you know, I could be standing on a
3 corner and just get stabbed, you know, by guys like
4 Commissioner Bell back in the day, and if they take my
5 I.D. and they run that into the system and, you know, or
6 they just decide to corral everybody up and take me down
7 and I've done nothing, is that going to be listed as a
8 police contact? Or let's just say I get arrested, I'm
9 not convicted of it, but now I have this record of
10 arrest, should that information still be in there even
11 though I was acquitted and just not formally charged?
12 Being arrested and charged and all that kind of stuff is
13 three different things. So if I'm just arrested and I'm
14 not charged or even if I'm charged and I'm acquitted,
15 how does that information correlate to young man in this
16 city who are affected mainly by these issues.

17 CHAIRMAN BELL: Well, I want to say,
18 Lieutenant Coles, that is, Chief Craig is really serious
19 about the background check. I am concerned too. We, as
20 police officers, know how important that is. We had a
21 young officer just recently was caught up in terms of
22 drug activity, and the Chief felt as though somewhere
23 along the line we was lacking in terms of the some of
24 the things that we should have initiated. It is very
25 crucial that we do a thorough background check and

1 interaction, and I think sometimes the public might not
2 understand that, but law enforcement personnel
3 understand how crucial that is in terms of trying to
4 sort out. It's probably more important today than
5 versus in the past due to the circumstances of what
6 we're dealing with, and this was a classic case that
7 when they visit this young officer' house, it was quite
8 obvious that she was engaging -- and turn out to be her
9 boyfriend, you know, was also dope dealing. So it's a
10 little more complicated than that.

11 So maybe you can have that conversation with
12 Dr. Anderson and Chief Craig and they staff and
13 recruiting. They don't take this lightly. We are not
14 trying to discriminate, but we are trying to sort out
15 and making sure we hire the right person through the
16 process. And some of us retired officers, we've been
17 through that whole process and know how crucial it is to
18 interact with your neighbors and et cetera, et cetera to
19 try to find out who is the real Willie Bell, not just on
20 paper. So some of us been through that experience, and
21 I think that's something that we need to do diligently,
22 and this was a case that the Chief cited, and I think he
23 sort of made the recommendation to recruiting in terms
24 of what transpired there.

25 LIEUTENANT COLES: Yes.

1 CHAIRMAN BELL: We had that conversation, so
2 we'll take notes on what you're indicating.

3 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Question for Dr.
4 Anderson. Thank you, Lieutenant Coles.

5 LIEUTENANT COLES: Yes, sir. Can I also
6 just add that, as I said before, in the instance where
7 one person gets pulled over and they'll say that they
8 get caught up in something like that, we always, again,
9 look at the totality of circumstances. It's not just
10 one traffic stop or one in incident. We look at
11 everything. Then we also get the police reports and
12 read the police reports. So everything we get, we get,
13 we verify, we read it, we make a determination on each
14 one of the instances.

15 So when you were saying like -- I don't want
16 it to seem like there's a huge influx of just everybody
17 getting arrested or getting disqualified for police
18 contacts, that's not the case. We look at each one of
19 the contacts they have, and, in some instances, we have
20 to bring the candidate in and talk to them to gather
21 more information about it to see if this might still be
22 a candidate that might be worthy of a police officer.

23 So just for clarification, I don't want it
24 to seem, you know, like stuff happens where somebody
25 might just get caught up and now they can't be a police

1 officer; that never happens.

2 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Okay, thank you.

3 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair.

4 CHAIRMAN BELL: I think we have one more
5 question.

6 COMMISSIONER BROWN: So, Dr. Anderson, I
7 understand last week sometime there was an employee
8 escorted out of the building by the Detroit Police. Can
9 you expound on --

10 DR. ANDERSON: Uh-huh. I can expound on
11 that. Your friend, Mr. Brian Turnell (phonetic) was not
12 escorted out of the building by the Detroit Police. The
13 person --

14 CHAIRMAN BELL: Dr. Anderson, Dr. Anderson,
15 that is a personnel matter, and we are not going to have
16 that type of dialogue at this particular meeting. So we
17 can move on.

18 And yes, any other commissioner?

19 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Yes, I do have a
20 question.

21 Thank you Dr. Anderson and Lieutenant Coles.

22 I, too, have a concern or a question about
23 the recruiting, and you have listed here temporarily
24 disqualified, 1,700 candidates.

25 What would temporarily disqualify an

1 individual, maybe the first five offenses or whatever,
2 that would cause a candidate to be temporarily
3 disqualified?

4 DR. ANDERSON: It may not necessarily be an
5 offense at all. It may be a person that has not
6 completed all their paperwork. It may be a person that
7 has used marijuana and we have put them on a one- or
8 two-year disqualification. Driver's license, if someone
9 doesn't have their driver's license or if their license
10 are suspended, that would be a temporary
11 disqualification. And we also let them know that if
12 they get it together, then we would bring them back. We
13 would reconsider them. That's why it's listed as
14 temporary.

15 COMMISSIONER HOLT: One other question,
16 through the Chair.

17 In those examples, do you, say, send a
18 reminder to try to encourage that person to come back in
19 and participate in the completion of the application?

20 DR. ANDERSON: We are working on that. We
21 do send out e-mails and we let them know that once
22 they've cleared up the issue, that they just need to
23 reach out to us. So when we -- when we send the e-mail,
24 we want them to basically be able to apply. So we send
25 an e-mail, we let them know once you get your driver's

1 license cleared, please let us know, and then we can
2 reinstate you back into the process.

3 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Okay, thank you.

4 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I have a question.

5 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir.

6 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Question: As relates
7 to the budgeted positions for lieutenant, I see there's
8 an ongoing process of being overbudgeted for
9 lieutenants. So is there a proposal to make some
10 changes, or is that going to be the new running norm.

11 DR. ANDERSON: I need to look more into
12 that, Commissioner Davis. I'm not aware that we have an
13 ongoing overage for lieutenants. We have an overage,
14 period, for officers, because --

15 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: No, I'm just talking
16 about this budgeted position, this two extra ones,
17 there's been two extra ones for a couple months.

18 DR. ANDERSON: I can look into that and
19 report back to you all next month.

20 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay.

21 DR. ANDERSON: Or next week, actually. I
22 can find that out, that would be easy to find out.

23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay, thank you.

24 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

25 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Just a very quick

1 question. Thank you, Commissioner.

2 In your leave of absence where you identify
3 medical and disabled, so if I wanted to know how many
4 officers are on medical leave, would those two numbers
5 be added together, would all of these numbers be -- not
6 all of them, but like FMLA and -- which numbers would
7 give me the total? Because it's hard to believe that
8 just one is on medical leave.

9 DR. ANDERSON: So we would have to look at
10 the disabled, and I can have that separated. Because
11 some of those that are disabled are also disabled
12 because -- not necessarily because of a work-related
13 injury.

14 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay.

15 DR. ANDERSON: So I can get that broken down
16 for my next report.

17 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.

18 DR. ANDERSON: You're welcome.

19 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, Dr. Anderson.

20 DR. ANDERSON: Thank you, sir.

21 CHAIRMAN BELL: The next item would be 8th
22 Precinct.

23 Commander Pritchett, please.

24 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Good evening. I'm
25 Jacqueline Pritchett, Commander, 8th Precinct. Captain

1 Dale Patterson is on furlough, so he's unable to attend
2 tonight. So I'm going to go over just a brief overview
3 of Number 8 crime stats, current trends, strategies,
4 initiatives our NPOs are involved in.

5 Year to date, homicides are down 43 percent;
6 they went from 14 to 8 year to date. Our nonfatal
7 shootings happen to be up 25 percent, they went from 24
8 to 30. Our robberies are up 2 percent, there's two more
9 reported incidents than there were this time last year.
10 Our car jackings are down from 71 percent, it went from
11 14 to 4 victims. Aggravated assault's are up 16 percent
12 from 306 to 417 victims. Our CSCs, one in three, which
13 is they're up from 27 to 43, and that's due to people
14 are not reporting known offenders. We have a lot of
15 reports from CPS, from DPS, and from Adult Protective
16 Services on CSCs that are alleged to have happened. Our
17 burglaries, however, are up from 324, 257. Our auto
18 thefts are down 11 percent from 330 to 295, and our
19 larcenies are done 11 percent from 554 to 491.

20 Our total arrests are up 30 percent. Year
21 to date, we have 1,021 arrests made out of 8th Precinct.
22 Out of those arrests, there were 95 firearms confiscated
23 off the street and 81 of those resulted (inaudible) so
24 the officers at Number 8 are hard working, they are
25 determined and they are dedicated to keeping the city

1 and the 8th Precinct safe.

2 Since training for Number 8, what we
3 currently do at Number 8, we have hot spot locations.
4 What that is is I look at the crime from the prior week,
5 Priority 1 calls for service and gun-related arrests,
6 and those are deemed my hot spots. What I do, I have my
7 officers deployed in those areas doing practical patrol
8 stops, just out there engaged in what goes on. And the
9 motor men going over and educate on driving offenses.

10 So what we do is if they are deployed in
11 these hot spot locations that caused the crime the prior
12 week, the crime usually goes down the next week. We
13 have biweekly restore order with special ops. What they
14 do, they go out with motor men who ticketed and towed,
15 they go out and they go into primarily these group and
16 gang locations that we have deemed in 8th Precinct and
17 they do targeted enforcement there.

18 We have OTEs, which is opportunity to engage
19 prostitution and solicitation events every bi-weekly --
20 I'm sorry, bimonthly weather permitting. We know in the
21 wintertime, it's frigid outside, and I don't want
22 officers out there on the street corner. And then we
23 have our cease fire who disrupt our group and gang
24 members.

25 There are also some supplements to my number

1 crime strategy to cease fire. It is a crime reduction
2 model using a three-tier approach, law enforcement,
3 voice of redemption, social services to reduce gang,
4 group and street crew related gun related violence.
5 There's also we do gun stats. What we do there is we
6 assign detectives to go to arraignments. If you have
7 someone that has a criminal history, extensive history,
8 we go there and ask for a higher bond. That seem to be
9 working out.

10 Also at 8, I can't wait to (inaudible)
11 another layer to help with our crime, it's called
12 Intermittent Partner Prevention of Violence (inaudible)
13 prevent intervention. And that is an offender-focused
14 victim-center approach that addresses the most serious
15 intimate department violence, IPV (phonetic), and it's
16 identifying and intervene patterns of abuse as early as
17 possible. (Inaudible) call-ins that they have for the
18 group and gang members. IPV will call in on some of the
19 most egregious assaulters and have them call in and make
20 it aware, because we all know that DV is a silent crime.
21 And with this IPV, I believe that once it's known to the
22 public, it won't happen as much. Then there's also our
23 active care with our chaplain core. It's a holistic
24 approach to crime fighting by addressing the social,
25 moral and spiritual causes affecting the community in

1 lieu of incarceration. The ultimate goal is to drive
2 down domestic assault statistics, reduce (inaudible) and
3 help build safe communities one block at a time.

4 And my partners out within DOC, we do
5 bimonthly home appliance checks (inaudible) by a group
6 of gang members. And I partner to continue
7 communication with our federal partners with homicide,
8 gang, and intel, major violators, vice enforcement.
9 Number 8 has currently five NPOs. Can you all stand,
10 Sergeant Wheatley (inaudible) Wheatley, NPO Precious
11 Reed, Troy Wesley, Barrie Coleman, Jeffrey Williams and
12 Shaun Childry. Our NPOs, they're pulled in all
13 directions, and they never complain, you know, dealing
14 with blight issues, Green Light compliance checks and
15 quality of life issues. So I'm thankful that my NPOs
16 that I have are engaged in doing what's best for the 8th
17 Precinct. So we have 70 Green Light locations here in
18 Number 8 and --

19 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: How many?

20 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Seventy. So the NPO
21 Eddie Eagle Gun Safety, we go into the schools and teach
22 kids of gun safety. We have Citizen Advisory Board,
23 which the residents come into the precinct, sit with me
24 and a sergeant and discuss some of their issues going on
25 in their community. We have bimonthly Coffee With a

1 Copy. We had our first Easter egg hunt the Saturday
2 before Easter, and we have a community union basketball
3 game on May the 13th.

4 MALE SPEAKER: 15th.

5 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: 15th. We also have
6 Movies in the Park in the summertime over at Stoepel
7 Park. We have back-to-school event, our annual turkey
8 giveaways. And we always adopt one or two families for
9 Christmas.

10 Number 8 has an embedded social worker and
11 DV advocate to help assist with CPOs and getting crime
12 under control in the 8th Precinct.

13 Are there any questions for me?

14 CHAIRMAN BELL: Commissioners.

15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes.

16 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

17 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Commander, I'd just
18 like to ask you where do you host your Coffee With a
19 Cop?

20 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: We have it at the
21 precinct, at the precinct' roll call room. We just had
22 one yesterday.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Yesterday.

24 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Have you ever thought
25 about taking it out in the community at the different

1 locations?

2 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Yes, as a matter of
3 fact, at our cease fire meet and greet date, we thinking
4 about having a community engagement event in one of our
5 areas of the 8th Precinct to involve the community and
6 tell them what we want to do to try to lessen crime in
7 that area. So that's something that is getting ready to
8 start, we going to take the Coffee With A Cop maybe
9 Pizza With The People or something like that, you know,
10 out in the neighborhood. So that is forth coming.

11 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I'd just like to
12 recommend use the Apollo sector because they do have
13 that outlet where you could have a table set up for the
14 people to come over to talk to you. Sometimes when
15 police are out in the public randomly sitting somebody
16 may come up and ask a question where they wouldn't come
17 into the precinct.

18 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Okay, noted. Thank
19 you.

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the Chair.

22 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you, Commissioner
24 Burch, for that suggestion.

25 Yesterday I was at the Coffee With the Cup.

1 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Yes, ma'am.

2 COMMISSIONER HOLT: And that's a misnomer,
3 it was some serious business that was transacted by the
4 NPO yesterday.

5 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Yes, ma'am.

6 COMMISSIONER HOLT: I mean you had some
7 angry citizens there who came to burn the police as well
8 as the neighbors with whom they were having issues, and
9 the way the NPOs, all of the ones that you mentioned
10 yesterday, you know were at the meeting --

11 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Yes, ma'am.

12 COMMISSIONER HOLT: -- they diffused, they
13 let the citizens know that they were aware of the
14 activity and that there was a process that needed to be
15 engaged before they could just go into the neighborhood
16 and pounce on these various neighbors that were being
17 accused of the disturbances. So it was an education to
18 me because I went there with -- for donuts and coffee,
19 and they're back there conducting business. So thank
20 you, NPOs, you really helped me feel good and safe after
21 I left the Coffee With the Cop.

22 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Thank you.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLT: You're welcome.

24 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Mr. Chair.

25 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir.

1 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Commander Pritchett,
2 thank you for the report and the great job that you do.
3 Thank you for bringing our numbers down.

4 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Doing my best.

5 COMMISSIONER BROWN: I know. Another thing,
6 I just wanted to give kudos too, a couple months ago, we
7 had a complaint come in and -- just to give praise to
8 our NPOs -- I actually told you Mr. Chairman that I
9 would follow up on that complaint. I actually went out
10 and rode along with -- where is BC?

11 CHAIRMAN BELL: Don't even mention BC.

12 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Back there hiding.

13 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Yeah, Shaun, she's
14 back there.

15 COMMISSIONER BROWN: These two NPOs, I rode
16 along with them out to investigate the situation. They
17 actually did a marvelous job with talking to resident
18 there and getting to understand, you know, the
19 complaints and things that are going against them and
20 everything, and I think we're going to continue to
21 monitor the situation over there. But I just want to
22 thank you for having such a good group of officers there
23 that patrol this area that meets the needs of the
24 citizens here in District 1. Thank you.

25 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Thank you.

1 COMMISSIONER HOLT: One more comment through
2 the Chair, please.

3 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

4 COMMISSIONER HOLT: I went on a ride along
5 with a young Officer Johnson, young in age and young as
6 a police officer, I think nine years. And with the
7 other officer and myself, she was -- Officer Johnson was
8 very much in charge and recognized the learning
9 opportunity for the young officer as well as the
10 citizen. And I went -- I did the ride along as a
11 citizen, not as a police commissioner, because I'd
12 already reserved the opportunity. So I indicated to
13 Officer Johnson that when I got the opportunity, I would
14 let you know how pleased I was with her performance.
15 And she was serious, she was -- it amazed me how on top
16 of her game she was even when she would be writing a
17 report. Something as simple as someone driving by with
18 a loud radio on would cause her to turn. It was just
19 amazing how attentive she was, yet focused to the
20 present job. So thank you.

21 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Thank you.

22 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you.

23 CHAIRMAN BELL: Anymore?

24 You out of the 8th Precinct too?

25 Commissioner Brooks, go ahead.

1 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Thank you very much.
2 You all do a lot in your community, and I think that is
3 great because that's what the community needs is to know
4 that you're police officers, you're not there to hurt
5 them, you're there to protect them.

6 But I wanted to ask the question do you have
7 anything at the precinct that you think we might be able
8 to have recruiting table there?

9 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Let me know when. We
10 have an auditorium there. Let me know when. I'll make
11 sure that there is a table there for you, make sure the
12 NPOs go out and put it in the neighborhoods in the 8th
13 Precinct. Just let me know.

14 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I certainly will.
15 I'll get all that information after the meeting. Thank
16 you.

17 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: You're welcome.

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: And as you all know, BC is
19 ongoing, he claim he is Number 1 Neighborhood Police
20 Officer in the city of Detroit, but he is a recruiter,
21 recruiter, I think all the NPOs do a fantastic job
22 recruiting citywide each police go into, as you all
23 know. And people always say what about the mini
24 station, there's no comparison, no comparison.

25 At this time, I would like all the retired

1 officers to stand up, please, any retired officers, all
2 retired officers.

3 Can we agree that this is a totally
4 different department in terms of positive things with
5 the community, can we agree with that? I mean, when I
6 hear people say things about DPD, they not engaging, I'm
7 sorry, they are not engaging, am I right or wrong? When
8 I was on this job, the commander was primarily confined
9 to her office, we didn't see the commander that often.
10 The closest thing was the lieutenant. We didn't see the
11 inspector that often. So this is a totally -- the
12 community to have these commanders and captains and NPO
13 on speed dial, are you aware of that? The Deputy Chief
14 and the Chief, they on speed dial. So let us try to
15 convey that to the public. When you get all the
16 criticism, you got to understand Greektown is highly
17 populated and always been. It's more so now. We have
18 fearless young men out there, don't care with all those
19 cameras there. They are scrapped, and they will do
20 bodily harm to one another and anyone in their way. We
21 won't ignore that, but that is reality. The police were
22 within sixty feet of that area. They don't care. They
23 know the impact of policing in Greektown in the city of
24 Detroit. Do they suffer the consequence?

25 Wayne County Sheriff can testify when they

1 go before the judge, they standing up there proud, when
2 they walk across their tone they might -- but they're
3 not intimidated because it's a what?

4 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Culture.

5 CHAIRMAN BELL: It's a culture. When we go
6 to cease fire, which is young people who are released,
7 they have that dialogue, the mayor, the chief, the
8 minister, job program, everything to help them, and I
9 know we are saving them from returning --

10 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Incarceration.

11 CHAIRMAN BELL: Incarceration and
12 criminality praying on up. We are trying to reach out.
13 But these are not strangers. Now, those two men came
14 from where? Out of -- out of the city of Detroit,
15 right?

16 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Yes, sir.

17 CHAIRMAN BELL: But we know that we have an
18 issue nationwide. When you say Detroit is Number 2, who
19 is Number 1, St. Louis, and who is Number 3, Baltimore,
20 who is Number 4, Memphis. They talking about the
21 inner-city of African-Americans. Am I right or wrong?
22 So, I mean, the reality, we are trying, and I don't want
23 to be on the soap box, but DPD, the recruiting process,
24 that's why we have the streamline making sure we get the
25 right people. Because that young lady to me was just

1 mind boggling, you know, with --

2 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Me as well.

3 CHAIRMAN BELL: Right. So thank you.

4 Continue the work. I think all our commanding officers,
5 all the NPOs and you, as community, without that
6 cooperation, we cannot do the work. Am I right or
7 wrong?

8 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: You're right. It
9 takes a village.

10 CHAIRMAN BELL: It used to be coffee at the
11 donut shop, but now we bringing the coffee and donuts to
12 them, and they coming to us. I see a cop, he's at the
13 doughnut shop, I heard that my whole career. I don't
14 like donuts. Thank you, thank you.

15 COMMANDER PRITCHETT: Thank you.

16 CHAIRMAN BELL: Give a round of applause.

17 Any outstanding ad hoc committee reports?

18 Report from the Board Secretary, Mr. Hicks.

19 SECRETARY HICKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I
20 do want to draw your attention to ten items that are
21 listed on the agenda. These, again, are listed on the
22 agenda as incoming items. They're not set on the agenda
23 for action at tonight's meeting. Typically they're
24 items which are taken up in future meetings.

25 The first two items on the agenda are -- on

1 the list are proposed directives from the Chief. One
2 has to do with a revision and an update on the Taser
3 policy, and it's entitled Taser X2. Secondly is a use
4 of force and detainees injuries reporting and
5 investigations. Those -- both of those items have been
6 referred to the Policy Committee and have been posted at
7 the website. We also encourage the citizens to go to
8 the website and to review these policies -- these
9 proposed policies and make comments. You can make
10 comments directly to the website or you can send us an
11 e-mail or you can send us communications via letter form
12 or, quite frankly, you can approach any of the
13 commissioners. And all of that information will be
14 taken under consideration as the review process takes
15 place.

16 I do want to also note that in the packet
17 there is a volunteer information sheet, and what we are
18 attempting to do is to reach into Detroit's community
19 and look for volunteers for the NACOLE conference and
20 the 45th Anniversary of the Board of Police
21 Commissioners. What we generally did in the sheet is
22 ask specific questions and gather up certain types of
23 skills so that we could match the person within the
24 skill and some sense of the time in which they would be
25 able to provide as volunteers.

1 I'd also want to report that the last -- the
2 Board of Police Commissioners has a printing contract in
3 front of the Detroit city Council. We were over last
4 Monday in connection with that printing contract, and
5 this is a printing contract that will allow for us to
6 publish our newsletters, the brochures, and all the
7 other kind of publications, including our annual report,
8 and the Council -- couple of the Council Members had a
9 couple of questions in connection with that. And it is
10 put on -- it's coming back to the City Council in three
11 week. We hope to be able, in that intervening period of
12 time, to answer any questions and concerns in which the
13 Council has. And what we are attempting to do, more
14 than anything else, is to get that approved in this
15 fiscal year so we can take advantage of funds in the
16 current fiscal year.

17 The other items that are listed in here, you
18 can review, but I do want to call your attention to, as
19 of today, I think we received at about 4:00, there was a
20 communication from the Chief in connection with a
21 proposed promotion of Lieutenant Russell, and that will
22 likewise be coming in front of the Board. We will do
23 our typical review of that promotion.

24 And then the final two things I guess is in
25 the next month or so, we're going to be engaged in a

1 discussion about the -- about privacy and surveillance,
2 public surveillance. There are two articles that we
3 have distributed to the Commission. One of them is
4 entitled Facial Recognition Technology, it's both biased
5 and understudied. This is a discussion about what's
6 happening in the area of police surveillance and
7 surveillance, generally speaking, using facial
8 recognition and to the extent to which facial
9 recognition as a technology is not as advanced as we all
10 might think it might be. But there's a very decent
11 article in that regard.

12 There's also a second article that comes out
13 of Government Technology, and that is in the same area.
14 And the focus of that article is that the -- when
15 surveillance takes place and there is a scan through and
16 a series of photographs and so forth, that the
17 intelligent technology they use in these situations are
18 actually picking up and interpreting emotions in the
19 pictures, and they're assigning, rather erroneously,
20 negative emotions to largely black men. It happens to
21 other people. But that's going to be one of the things
22 that we want to make sure that as we move forward with
23 facial recognition and other things like that, that the
24 Department, Number 1, is aware of it, and the Department
25 has policies and practices that correct for things that

1 an algorithm does that nobody knows really what's going
2 on in the algorithm.

3 So those are the items I did want to bring
4 to your attention. And if there is any questions, this
5 evening, I'm more than happy to take your questions.

6 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Chairman.

7 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir.

8 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Through the Chair, I
9 really feel like that we need to have -- start having a
10 report on the Anniversary. I think that, you know, we
11 need this be brought up and what it's going to look like
12 and, you know, what can we do to help it be even better,
13 whether they're going to have a souvenir booklet, who is
14 going to help us. You know, then you got a printing
15 contract that we waiting on City Council to help us with
16 that, and that may have an impact, so I really feel like
17 I don't -- I'm the kind of guy that -- and I'm sure
18 you -- the rest of us are as well, like to do things and
19 planning three or four months out so that we make sure
20 that we are.

21 Secondly, Mr. Chairman, I'm having an
22 appreciation for law enforcement on the Sunday after
23 Mother's Day where we basically at the church at 10:00,
24 we'll be -- the -- having a program honoring the Chief
25 and the eleven staff assistants. And I'd like to know

1 if -- what City Commissioners will be there, so I can
2 have a special place for them. And that's not an
3 excuse, I'm going to be in Africa for about ten days, so
4 I need to see if I can get this done today so that I get
5 everything done before I leave. And that's for a
6 special excuse for not being here at the next Thursday.

7 CHAIRMAN BELL: Commissioners solely
8 indicate by raising their hand if they plan on
9 attending.

10 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you.

11 CHAIRMAN BELL: We will have an update next
12 week in reference to the 45th Anniversary and the 25th
13 Anniversary.

14 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: If you just wait until
15 I get back.

16 CHAIRMAN BELL: We'll wait until you get
17 back.

18 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I'm sorry.

19 CHAIRMAN BELL: We'll wait until you get
20 back, but we might be able to send you something in
21 writing --

22 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: That's fine.

23 CHAIRMAN BELL: -- in reference to that.
24 Can we do that, Commissioner Brooks, have something next
25 week or just in writing, something like that, because

1 Commissioner Holley is not going to be here, update
2 where we are with that.

3 She said she can do that.

4 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Thank you.

5 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. I'm looking
6 forward to that type of recognition at historic Rock
7 Baptist Church.

8 Old business.

9 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Mr. Chair.

10 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

11 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Just to remind
12 everybody, thank you very much of the outpour of the
13 Project Reservoir to Highland Park, two cities coming
14 together. I just want to say thank you for, like I
15 said, the outpouring already on May 11th, which will be
16 this coming Saturday. We're going to prime the
17 reservoir to ready it for the mural that is going to be
18 done by the artists all over the country.

19 So if you would like to know more about
20 that, my son is over there. We have fliers. It's all
21 over the Internet. It's on everybody's website, I
22 believe. And hopefully Mayor Yopp will attend the press
23 conference. Again, it will be this coming Saturday at
24 11 a.m. Mayor Yopp and Mayor Duggan, two cities coming
25 together to remove blight.

1 Thank you.

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

3 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, one second.

4 11:00, what location?

5 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I'm sorry about that, M
6 Mr. Chair, the location is right at Pleasant Rural
7 Baptist Church, 13651 Dequindre. It's between Davison
8 and McNichols. Longest reservoir you've ever seen.

9 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you. 11:00. And you
10 asking Commissioners to attend.

11 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, sir, if at all
12 possible, wear your paint clothes, don't come to just be
13 a commissioner. I'm just saying to the Commissioners,
14 not the audience I'm saying. But we do need volunteers
15 to actually paint, we are going to paint with primer.

16 CHAIRMAN BELL: We just -- I don't wear work
17 clothes outside of my residence, but I will be there to
18 grace your activity.

19 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

20 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, Commissioner Burton.

21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, I move
22 that we move -- I move that the Board of Police
23 Commissioners post committee meetings as well as the
24 minutes onto the City of Detroit website so the
25 community can be properly informed.

1 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Second.

2 CHAIRMAN BELL: Been properly moved and
3 seconded.

4 Discussion.

5 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the Chair.

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

7 COMMISSIONER HOLT: So do I make the
8 assumption that this is not always the case on the
9 website, is that --

10 CHAIRMAN BELL: Our minutes are on the
11 website, but we do not have standing committee dates and
12 times.

13 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Well, yeah, I
14 understand.

15 CHAIRMAN BELL: That issue been brought up
16 over and over again, and I think that it was a motion
17 last week in reference to the committee. The Board
18 stated that they didn't want a schedule because we all
19 volunteer --

20 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Correct.

21 CHAIRMAN BELL: -- et cetera, et cetera, so
22 we are not similar to others in terms of being
23 chartered, mandated to have that process in place.

24 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

25 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yeah.

1 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I think somebody
2 else -- I can --

3 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: I'd like to move that
4 we post pone indefinitely, we already voted and I think
5 the (inaudible) was a nay.

6 UNKNOWN FEMALE SPEAKER: Support.

7 CHAIRMAN BELL: That is correct.

8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

9 CHAIRMAN BELL: It's been properly moved and
10 seconded. Commissioner Griffie' motion is that we have
11 already acted on that, that that motion take preference
12 over the previous motion the previous motion to --

13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Is there discussion?

14 CHAIRMAN BELL: Discussion.

15 COMMISSIONER BURTON: So through the --
16 through my colleagues and also members of the community,
17 these committees meetings are not posted online. You
18 are taxpayer citizens, you need to know when these are
19 taking place. Secondly, decisions are being made.
20 Where's the minutes?

21 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair,
22 point of order.

23 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

24 COMMISSIONER CARTER: We're voting on the --
25 we're having discussion on the postponement, not on

1 the --

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Sure.

3 COMMISSIONER CARTER: -- not on the previous
4 motion.

5 CHAIRMAN BELL: That is correct.

6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Okay, so to get back
7 on this motion, again, Mr. Chairman, is that according
8 to reading the Robert's Rules of Order, you can bring
9 this back up each week, no matter what our colleagues
10 vote down on transparency. We can bring this back up.

11 But you are our citizens of the City of
12 Detroit, you deserve better.

13 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Through the Chair.

14 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

15 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: I'd like to call the
16 question.

17 CHAIRMAN BELL: Those in favor of the
18 motion.

19 SOME OF THE GROUP: Aye.

20 CHAIRMAN BELL: Those opposed.

21 SOME OF THE GROUP: Nay.

22 SECRETARY HICKS: Mr. Chair, by voice, I
23 recorded two nays, and the balance of the Commissioners
24 who voted -- voted to indefinitely postpone.

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, I

1 have another motion for old business since we're still
2 under old business.

3 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir.

4 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I move that during the
5 regular board session that we have unofficial minutes
6 also added on the table at the back during each session
7 so the community can also be informed of what took place
8 last week and previous weeks.

9 CHAIRMAN BELL: We already addressed that,
10 sir. We addressed that last week that we are in
11 compliance with that. Minutes are out there on the
12 table. We had that discussion. So your motion is out
13 of order.

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Those minutes,
15 Mr. Chairman, are two weeks out, but I can put a motion
16 out there to also add the unofficial minutes.

17 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Mr. Chairman, at this
18 point, Commissioner, I think what we're talking about
19 here -- and I appreciate your effort making
20 transparency, but the point is nothing is official
21 unless we vote on the minutes, and you can't put them
22 out there until they official by this body. So it's
23 always --

24 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Point of order.

25 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: -- so it's always

1 going to be late getting to them.

2 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Point of order, I
3 didn't hear a second on that motion.

4 CHAIRMAN BELL: I'm sorry?

5 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: I never --

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, motion is not on the
7 floor. Let's move on to announcements.

8 The next meeting is going to be Thursday,
9 May the 16th, 2019 at 3 p.m. at Public Safety
10 Headquarters, 1301 Third Street.

11 The next community meeting is going to be on
12 Thursday, June the 13th, 2019, 6:30 p.m. the 2nd
13 Precinct, St. John Lutheran Church, 39 Oakman Boulevard.

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, we
15 never said new business.

16 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Mr. Chairman, may
17 I make an announcement, please?

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

19 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: We have a
20 recruitment table here tonight as we do at every
21 community meeting. So if you have friends, relatives,
22 family who are interested in joining the Detroit Police
23 Department. We have Sergeant Gonzalez back there and
24 several officers who are helping us with recruitment.

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair --

1 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes.

2 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: To end on a good note,
3 Sergeant Gonzalez, if you wouldn't mind telling us what
4 happened to the kids that you had at the police
5 headquarters from the school, just briefly, real fast.

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, very briefly, because
7 we want to move on.

8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, we
9 never heard new business, only heard old business, never
10 heard anything --

11 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: We're moving on to
12 announcements, sir.

13 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir -- yes, ma'am. I'm
14 sorry.

15 SERGEANT GONZALEZ: Good evening, Board. I
16 would like to first say thank you to Apollo -- on behalf
17 of Apollo, they have also allowed our Detroit Police
18 Department recruiting team set up shop at their grocery
19 stores. So that's included on her awards. But we are
20 bringing in schools, it was the University Prep, the
21 criminal justice program actually came to the
22 headquarters. We had a presentation under Lieutenant
23 Harris, he supplied his units to come to do a
24 presentation in front of these students, was the K-9,
25 his SRT and his bomb squad. They absolutely loved it.

1 And then they had a tour of the building, so they
2 actually seen the different units of domestic violence,
3 child abuse and our crime Intel.

4 We've been doing that often. We have goal
5 (inaudible) come in next week, and it's really helping
6 with the college students. I just asked Ms. Carter if
7 her class will like to come and do a tour because with
8 our criminal justice college students, once they
9 actually get a taste of what we do, we send them out --
10 after doing a presentation, we've been sending them out
11 to the precincts, all the precinct commanders, which I'm
12 very thankful for, they set up a ride along, and they're
13 only supposed to be there maybe two hours, and the
14 students are staying the whole day. And they're
15 interning coming back and actually applying to our
16 department prior to them even finishing their degree.

17 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Thank you.

18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, I
19 put out there --

20 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Just to comment to
21 Sergeant Gonzalez, if you have someone available for
22 this Saturday, it's going to be a lot of people there.
23 You can have a recruiting table there.

24 SERGEANT GONZALEZ: Okay.

25 COMMISSIONER BURCH: So talk to me after and

1 I'll give you all of the info.

2 COMMISSIONER GONZALEZ: I believe we are set
3 up to come tomorrow to come to the stores.

4 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, we
5 never said --

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: Ms. Blossom, please, go
7 ahead.

8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: -- new business.

9 MS. BLOSSOM: Mr. Chair, I have four cards.
10 First speaker will be Ms. Faith followed by Harold
11 Osborne on behalf of Reggie Osborne followed by Scottie
12 Bowman followed by Marilyn Jordan.

13 And there are seats in the front row if
14 people want to come forward and sit and then go to the
15 microphone.

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, before
17 our first speaker speak, Mr. Chairman, I did have
18 something for new business. Only heard old business.
19 And I don't think we got guided into new business. But
20 for new business, I move that --

21 CHAIRMAN BELL: Sir, you do not have --

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: -- raise public
23 comments from two minutes to three minutes.

24 CHAIRMAN BELL: Sir, you do not have the
25 floor, you do not have the floor.

1 Please, first speaker.

2 MS. FAITH: Welcome, Honorable Board. I'd
3 like to say that because you are all honorable folks,
4 and I appreciate every one of you over and over again
5 ever since I've been coming for about I guess three,
6 almost four years, it looks like to me. And you always
7 been the same, you've never changed. Even on very
8 sensitive matters, you're always the same. At the end
9 of the meeting, it's always just balanced on all parts.
10 And --

11 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Thank you.

12 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

13 MS. FAITH: As far as working with public
14 and community, when I was homeless, they were always
15 cordial, they were all respectful, they're always up the
16 street up and down. If I was out of order, they always
17 respected me and told me one place to go and don't go
18 there. So they had a place for me to go. And I just --
19 I want to thank you all for being commissioners, in
20 disciplining, in doing the ethics and whatever it takes.
21 And also special accommodations for Commissioner Bell, I
22 read an article how you working on -- and the rest of
23 the Commissioners I'm sure are doing too -- legal force
24 working on smoothing that out, so that it will be more
25 compliant with I guess the laws and the citizens of this

1 fine city that we live in. And I'm very very happy to
2 be a citizen of this city where you all are leaders.

3 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

4 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you.

5 MS. BLOSSOM: Okay. I'm only calling the
6 names of people who gave cards at the call of the
7 Chairman. Harold Osborne followed by Scottie Bowman and
8 then the last speaker will be Marilyn Jordan.

9 MR. OSBORNE: Good evening. My concern here
10 is my brother, he was murdered in November, and we
11 actually -- I have my family here. We want to know do
12 you guys have some kind of update or follow-up process
13 for the families whose family who have been victimized
14 through murder?

15 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, sir. And you can speak
16 to homicide detective. I'm sorry, not detective,
17 captain, and he's coming to you, he'll speak to you
18 outside in the back of the room. And Chief Craig is
19 very sensitive to that particular matter, and I think
20 maybe BC could speak to the organization that he sort of
21 addressed.

22 DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yeah, I mean, we
23 do have a very thorough process. The OIC should be
24 getting ahold of the one family member that is the
25 contact person. You should be getting regular updates.

1 MR. OSBORNE: We don't. And I have other
2 people -- I've joined support groups who have been in --
3 you know, it's been over two years.

4 CHAIRMAN BELL: Could you just speak to the
5 captain, I think he can address that concern.

6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, that's
7 not the way to talk to a citizen that has come before
8 this Honorable Board.

9 CHAIRMAN BELL: Excuse me.

10 MR. OSBORNE: You all going to need a fire
11 extinguisher up there, do you all? You all need to get
12 along or something. This is sensitive to me --

13 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir.

14 MR. OSBORNE: -- because my brother was
15 murdered, and we have yet to hear anything or our
16 family --

17 CHAIRMAN BELL: I'm sorry for your loss.

18 MR. OSBORNE: I'd like you to say yes, if
19 anything.

20 CHAIRMAN BELL: And the captain going to
21 speak to you. Thank you.

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Sir, I'd like to give
23 you my card before I leave, I'd like to talk to you too
24 before the day is up.

25 But, Mr. Chairman, I think we need to treat

1 our -- the citizens --

2 CHAIRMAN BELL: Sir, you do not have the
3 floor, you do not have the floor.

4 COMMISSIONER BURTON: -- with better
5 respect. And when you sat down as Commissioner at the
6 table, you disenfranchised a hundred thousand voters in
7 the district.

8 MS. BLOSSOM: Next speaker.

9 MR. BOWMAN: I yield my time to Commissioner
10 Burton.

11 CHAIRMAN BELL: Commissioner Burton don't
12 have time. He's a commissioner.

13 Do you want to speak, sir?

14 MR. BOWMAN: Why can't I yield my time --

15 CHAIRMAN BELL: This is public
16 participation. Do you want to speak?

17 MR. BOWMAN: Okay, fine.

18 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you.

19 MR. BOWMAN: First of all, I did not hear
20 new business called either, and I do think it's quite
21 offensive how efforts to make this body more transparent
22 to the people who elected them and the people who come
23 to these meetings is being stifled by other members. I
24 just want to get that out there. You can put minutes
25 out there without prior approval because you have copies

1 of minutes prior to approval, which you approved. It
2 would be constructive for people to look at what you're
3 discussing and what you're approving when you approve
4 minute. So I don't see any problem with that. I don't
5 know why there's a problem with -- you know, people say,
6 well, we don't have regularly-scheduled committee
7 meetings because we work full-time. Well, if people are
8 going to meet, how do they know to meet other people if
9 you don't have a scheduled time for the meeting?
10 Obviously, at some point, the meeting is scheduled and
11 at that time it can go up on the website. So I'm
12 hearing these reasons that aren't reasons at all. Their
13 just excuses. We all know someone has one and everyone
14 has something else.

15 One other thing I just wanted to add here is
16 I had a ride along also back last week, and I noticed
17 that I think everybody there, except one person, was
18 probably under thirty. And I think there is a retention
19 problem in the department. There needs to be a way to
20 make good on the those pensions and -- or other
21 benefits, medical and so on, the benefits that officers
22 have been shorted on ever since we had the emergency
23 manager. Especially since supposedly the City has a
24 comeback and supposedly money for things like bike lanes
25 and all these other little gimmicks. Clearly, we need

1 to make good on that, and then maybe when people join
2 the department, they will want to stick around, because
3 they look and go, you know what, we can actually trust
4 the Department and the City of Detroit to make good on
5 their promise to take care of us in the future.

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: Thank you, sir.

7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you,
8 Commissioner Bowman.

9 MS. BLOSSOM: The final speaker, Mr. Chair,
10 Marilyn Jordan.

11 MS. JORDAN: Yes. I -- first of all, good
12 evening, and I really appreciate the good job that the
13 police officers are doing. Marilyn Jordan, Detroit
14 People's Task Force. I appreciate the good job that the
15 police officers are doing and as well as the
16 commissioners, but I have to agree that when you have an
17 agenda, you must follow the agenda, and those
18 meetings -- those minutes from the meetings are very
19 important to me as a taxpaying citizen. Most of you are
20 elected, some of you are appointed, and we expect the
21 agenda to be ran through as thoroughly as it's printed
22 out. And we do need to know when meetings are being
23 held. I drove ten to fifteen minutes around under
24 confusion about where the location was. So it's
25 important. And don't sit up there and make faces when

1 we're asking questions when one of your persons
2 Mr. Burton is telling you you're not doing it right,
3 because we're looking at you. And when election time
4 come around, you may not be sitting in that seat.

5 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Through the Chair.

6 CHAIRMAN BELL: Yes, ma'am.

7 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: I just want to
8 clarify, because there seems to be some confusion that
9 we do, in fact, post our minutes. What we do is wait
10 until we have all ratified and agreed and voted, as you
11 saw today, on those minutes so that way the citizens
12 don't get the wrong information. Because if, for
13 example, one of our staff members misquoted something or
14 said something that was incorrect, they come before us
15 and we all vote on the approval of the minutes. At the
16 time the minutes are approved, they are then provided to
17 you.

18 No one on this Commission is trying to not
19 be transparent. No one on this Commission wants to
20 deceive information. We, I think, are the only
21 Commission in the entire city that meets every single
22 week for hours. We are here. We are not full-time or
23 paid elected officials. We give up our own time because
24 we love the city and the community .

25 So I will not stand and listen to people

1 saying things that are incorrect. Because my time is
2 just as valuable as everybody's here, and I'm here
3 because I love my city and I love my citizens.

4 But I am not trying to deceive anyone.

5 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair,
6 through the Chair, you know, I look at --

7 CHAIRMAN BELL: Sir, you do not have the
8 floor.

9 The chair will entertain a motion for
10 adjournment at this time.

11 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: So moved.

12 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Second.

13 CHAIRMAN BELL: Been properly moved and
14 seconded.

15 Those in favor aye.

16 GROUP: Aye.

17 CHAIRMAN BELL: Those opposed.

18 We stand adjourned.

19 (Meeting adjourned at 8:22 p.m.)
20
21
22
23
24
25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) SS
COUNTY OF WAYNE)

I hereby certify that I reported stenographically the foregoing meeting at the time and place hereinbefore set forth; that thereafter the same was reduced to computer transcription under my supervision; and that this is a full, true, complete and correct transcription of said meeting.



MEDINA J. BALDERAS, CSR-6213
Notary Public
Wayne County, Michigan

My Commission expires: June 11, 2020

0

0 44:3

1

1 2:24 3:8 6:1 33:7 44:13,14
57:5 63:24 65:19 67:19 71:24

1,021 56:21

1,700 43:6 52:24

1,846 43:22

10 43:11 44:3

10:00 72:23

10th 9:10,15

11 44:5 56:18,19 74:24

112 43:6

11:00 75:4,9

11th 13:18 28:19 74:15

12 44:12

124 44:11

12th 8:24

1301 80:10

13651 75:7

13th 14:1 60:3 80:12

14 56:6,11

142 43:12

15 44:14

15th 29:8 60:4,5

16 56:11

161 42:25

16th 80:9

17 29:18

18700 14:1

19 43:17 44:3

1922 19:8

1962 47:15

1967 19:14,17

1974 20:15

1976 12:10

1979 19:19

1998 3:13

1st 43:3

2

2 6:9 10:6 33:17 43:9 56:8
67:18

2,479 42:25

2,640 42:25

2011 48:9

2018 20:12 29:14 43:3

2019 2:2 6:25 15:21,24 20:14
28:11 29:8,18 43:3 80:9,12

204.4 16:16

20th 29:14

21 43:18

22nd 15:21,24

24 56:7

25 56:7

257 56:17

25th 73:12

26th 15:21

27 43:23 56:13

272 43:23

28 43:17

295 56:18

2nd 6:24 33:22 80:12

3

3 5:22 14:16 36:20 43:18
67:19 80:9

3,152 43:4

30 16:10 43:11 56:8,20

304.7 16:18

306 56:12

30th 43:3

324 56:17

330 56:18

34 43:21

345 43:4

359 43:6,21

36 44:11

39 80:13

3rd 34:1

4

4 2:6 10:23 44:6 56:11 67:20

417 56:12

43 56:5,13

4326 32:3

45th 15:23 16:5 20:13 69:20
73:12

46 43:10

47 43:13

48 43:13,14

491 56:19

4:00 70:19

4th 9:5 19:8

5

5 18:3

500 48:8

52 43:19

54 43:5

554 56:19

555 44:15

571 43:20

582 43:7 44:25

6

6 6:3 43:11

631 43:2

6:30 2:3 14:17 80:12

6th 9:11 18:16 19:19

7

7 5:20 14:19

70 43:2 59:17

701 43:1

71 56:10

78 44:6

7th 12:13

8

8 13:19 14:20 56:3,6,24 57:2,3
58:10 59:9,18 60:10

81 56:23

87 44:7

8:22 91:19

8th 2:23 3:7 9:8,21,25 17:1
26:1 27:2 55:21,25 56:21
57:1,16 59:16 60:12 61:5
64:24 65:12

9

9 2:2

95 56:22

96 20:19

9th 28:11

A

a.m. 13:19 74:24

ability 13:14

absence 4:5 44:4 55:2

absolutely 81:25

abuse 58:16 82:3

AC 17:10

academy 43:16 46:9

accept 11:5 25:4 27:17

accepting 28:9

access 29:9,22 30:24

accommodations 84:21

accountability 20:9 27:4

accused 62:17

achieve 23:25

achievements 18:21

acknowledge 11:9 16:14

acknowledges 26:24

acquainted 13:7

acquitted 49:11,14

acted 77:11

action 11:20,24 12:5,14,16
13:1 19:21 68:23

active 20:19 23:15 58:23

activism 4:10

activity 34:20,25 49:22 62:14
75:18

actual 16:11

ad 68:17

Adam 25:11

add 38:16 51:6 79:16 88:15

added 55:5 79:6

addition 26:11

additional 14:11

Additionally 12:25 15:16

address 86:5

addressed 79:9,10 85:21

addresses 58:14

addressing 39:24 58:24

adjourned 91:18,19

adjournment 91:10

administered 20:11

administration 16:21

admire 22:1 36:8

Adolph 2:18

adopt 60:8

adoption 21:6 27:24 31:5

Adult 56:15

advance 16:10

advanced 71:9

advancement 25:18

advantage 70:15

advising 46:9

Advisory 59:22

advocate 60:11

Affairs 9:4

affected 49:16

affecting 58:25

Affirmative 11:20,24 12:5,16
13:1,2 19:21

Africa 73:3

African 13:19

African-americans 67:21

age 20:19 30:2 64:5

agencies 15:4 47:4,19

agency 16:5

agenda 6:15 68:21,22,25
89:17,21

Aggravated 56:11

agility 43:5,12
agree 35:11 66:3,5 89:16
agreed 90:10
ahead 64:25 83:7
ahold 85:24
Akbar 8:11
algorithm 72:1,2
align 31:1
alleged 56:16
alleys 22:8
alliance 24:9
allotted 17:19
allowed 81:17
allowing 29:6
altercation 34:2
Alvin 10:18
amazed 64:15
amazing 22:3,10,13 64:19
Amen 4:3,14
amend 29:5
amending 30:14
amends 30:18
American 13:19
amount 34:17
Anderson 8:4,5 16:24,25
42:21 44:20,23 45:10 50:12
51:4 52:6,10,14,21 53:4,20
54:11,18,21 55:9,15,18,19,20
Anderson's 42:16
angry 62:7
Annabelle 25:11
Annie 5:18
anniversary 16:5 20:13 69:20
72:10 73:12,13
announcement 80:17

announcements 80:7 81:12
annual 23:5 26:11 60:7 70:7
annually 16:12
answers 16:20
anticipating 39:14
Anymore 64:23
Apollo 25:13 26:3 27:10,19
61:12 81:16,17
Appeals 18:15 19:19
applauding 41:6
applause 68:16
appliance 59:5
applicants 30:17 43:4,12 45:7
application 53:19
apply 53:24
applying 82:15
appointed 19:16,18 26:7
89:20
appointee 26:8
appointment 33:21
appreciation 72:22
approach 58:2,14,24 69:12
approval 6:24 33:15 87:25
88:1 90:15
approve 29:20 88:3
approved 29:15,19 30:13
70:14 88:1 90:16
approving 88:3
April 42:23 43:3,10,17,19
44:2,18
area 34:25 35:8,14 36:9,22
37:6,9 41:10 61:7 63:23 66:22
71:6,13
areas 57:7 61:5
ARISE 11:3
arms 4:13

Army 19:11
arraignments 58:6
arrest 41:4,8 49:10
arrested 46:23 49:8,12,13
51:17
arrests 34:8 46:25 56:20,21,
22 57:5
arrived 18:7
article 14:19 71:11,12,14
84:22
articles 71:2
artists 74:18
assault 59:2
assault's 56:11
assaulters 58:19
assaults 32:23
assign 58:6
assigning 71:19
assist 60:11
Assistant 16:19 17:8 36:11
39:5
assistants 43:18,21,23 44:4
72:25
assisted 26:9
assisting 25:25
Association 15:19 20:16
assume 3:18
assumption 76:8
At-large 5:18,24 6:5,7
attempting 69:18 70:13
attend 56:1 74:22 75:10
attendance 2:8 18:2
attended 23:5
attending 8:10 73:9
attention 68:20 70:18 72:4
attentive 64:19

Attorney 7:24
attributed 24:19
attrition 44:2
audience 17:14 75:14
audio-visual 7:18
auditing 15:2
auditorium 65:10
authored 32:2
authorizing 29:16
auto 56:17
awaiting 33:15 43:4
Award 28:10
awards 81:19
aware 38:11 54:12 58:20
62:13 66:13 71:24
awareness 4:9
aye 6:20,21 7:4,5 21:12,13
28:4,5 31:10 78:19 91:15,16

B

back 17:16 27:16 33:23 35:1
39:6,9 47:15 48:9,10 49:4
53:12,18 54:2,19 62:19 63:12,
14 70:10 73:15,17,20 78:6,9,
10 79:6 80:23 82:15 85:18
88:16
back-to-school 60:7
background 45:18 49:19,25
bad 38:7
Baker 11:22
balance 8:8 12:15 78:23
balanced 11:9 84:9
Balderas 7:19
Baltimore 67:19
ban-the-box 30:8,15 31:3 32:6
Baptist 2:13 3:10 4:12 14:1
74:7 75:7

Baron 9:25
Barrie 59:11
baseball 22:8
based 15:6
basically 53:24 72:23
basis 38:10
basketball 60:2
BC 63:10,11 65:18 85:20
beat 36:21
beautiful 3:4
beefing 41:9
beginning 17:18
beginnings 19:5
behalf 2:8 4:12 14:4 20:23
21:24 25:4 27:8 32:16,18
81:16 83:11
behave 36:14
beliefs 19:6
believed 24:20
believes 4:8,9
Bell 2:5,6,22 3:18 4:15 5:14
6:10,14,18 7:3,6 8:15,19 10:3,
7,12,17,20,24 18:6 21:9,14
23:4,10,18 24:23 25:3,5
27:20,22 28:1,17,22 31:7,11,
19,21 32:7,10,14,18 36:6
37:18 38:21 39:3,18 40:22
41:11,13,18,22 42:2,5,9,11,20
44:19,22 49:4,17 50:19 51:1
52:4,14 54:5,24 55:19,21
60:14,16 61:22 62:25 63:11
64:3,23 65:18 67:5,11,17
68:3,10,16 72:7 73:7,11,16,
19,23 74:5,10 75:3,9,16,20
76:2,6,10,15,21,25 77:7,9,14,
23 78:5,14,17,20 79:3,9 80:4,
6,18 81:1,6,13 83:6,21,24
84:21 85:15 86:4,9,13,17,20
87:2,11,15,18 89:6 90:6 91:7,
13,17
belligerent 46:11,13

bench 23:20
benefits 88:21
Betty 5:5
bi-weekly 57:19
biased 71:4
bike 88:24
bill 32:2,6
bimonthly 57:20 59:5,25
birth 19:8
bit 38:17
biweekly 57:13
black 12:15 49:1 71:20
blacks 13:6
blight 59:14 74:25
blind 24:5
block 59:3
blocks 35:15
Blossom 7:14 17:17 83:6,9
85:5 87:8 89:9
blue 4:5
board 2:8,14 4:7 5:9 7:8,9,21,
23 8:3,9 14:4,8,13,20 15:10,
12,18 16:9 17:11 20:6,15,18,
22 21:24 22:24 23:11 26:22
27:3 29:14,19,22 30:3,13,18,
22 31:3 40:15 42:22 44:17
45:15 48:24 59:22 68:18
69:20 70:2,22 75:22 76:17
79:5 81:15 84:2 86:8
Board's 16:20
bodily 66:20
body 79:22 87:21
boggling 68:1
bomb 81:25
bond 58:8
booklet 72:13
books 20:1

BOPC 15:1
Bostick 5:5
bother 41:17
bottom 33:8
Boulevard 80:13
bow 2:20
Bowman 10:10 83:12 85:7
87:9,14,17,19 89:8
box 67:23
boyfriend 50:9
Bratton 12:25
breaks 48:8
breath 18:25
Brian 9:13 52:11
briefly 81:5,6
brightest 36:17
bring 3:24 51:20 53:12 72:3
78:8,10
bringing 19:13 41:4 63:3
68:11 81:20
brochures 70:6
broken 45:7 48:18 55:15
Brooks 5:23 64:25 65:1,14
67:4 73:24 81:2 82:17 84:11
brother 22:12 46:6,7,10 85:10
86:14
brothers 22:9
brought 72:11 76:15
Brown 2:25 3:6,20 4:21,24
5:2,5,25 6:1,17 7:12,13 10:16
24:25 25:7 27:7 31:4 39:17,19
40:21 44:21,23 47:10 48:3,5,
20 51:3 52:2,6 62:24 63:1,5,
12,15 76:1
Brown' 3:2
Brown's 7:15
budgeted 54:7,16

build 59:3
building 4:4 52:8,12 82:1
Burch 5:21,22 11:3 25:3 27:5
28:14,20 60:15,17,24 61:11,
20,24 74:9,11 75:5,11,19
82:20,25 84:12 85:3
Burch' 28:18
burglaries 33:9 56:17
burn 62:7
Burton 18:1,4 36:5,7 37:19
38:19,21 40:24 41:1 75:2,20,
21 76:24 77:1,8,13,15 78:2,6,
25 79:4,14 80:14,25 81:8
82:18 83:4,8,16,22 86:6,22
87:4,10,11 89:7 90:2 91:5
business 25:13,15 26:6,15
62:3,19 74:8 79:1,2 80:15
81:9 83:8,18,19,20 87:20
Bylaws 16:12

C

call 3:21 40:1 58:18,19 60:21
70:18 78:15 85:6
call-ins 58:17
called 58:11 87:20
calling 85:5
calls 57:5
calm 19:14
cameras 66:19
Campus 3:15
candidate 45:18,19,20,23
51:20,22 53:2
candidates 46:4 52:24
capable 3:23
captain 8:22,24 9:5,11,13,15,
16 17:4 33:11 34:4,5,6,23
38:9 40:12 41:12 55:25 85:17
86:5,20
captains 66:12

captured 20:1
car 33:2,5 56:10
card 17:15,18 86:23
cards 17:15 41:20 42:8 83:9
85:6
care 33:18 58:23 66:18,22
89:5
career 19:11 68:13
caring 21:1
carried 6:23 7:7 19:8 21:15
28:7
Carter 6:2,3 19:18 21:6 27:21,
23 52:3 77:21,24 78:3 82:6
91:12
case 11:22,24 12:4,22 38:4
50:6,22 51:18 76:8
cases 13:3 15:3
categories 48:19
caught 49:21 51:8,25
caused 57:11
cease 57:23 58:1 61:3 67:6
celebrating 15:22
cell 17:20
centuries 18:20
ceremony 20:12
Certificate 28:12
cetera 50:18 76:21
chair 6:1,12 24:25 27:6,21
31:4,18 34:5,14 36:5 38:19
39:17 40:14 41:16 44:21
48:22 52:3 53:16 61:21 62:24
64:2 68:19 72:8 74:9 75:2,6
76:5,24 77:8,21 78:13,22,25
80:14,25 81:8 82:18 83:4,9
89:9 90:5 91:5,6,9
Chairman 2:5,22 3:18 4:15
5:14 6:10,14,18 7:3,6,11 8:15,
19 10:1,3,7,12,17,20,24 18:5,
6 21:9,14 23:4,10,18 24:23
25:3,5 27:20,22 28:1,17,22

31:7,11,19,21 32:7,10,14 36:6
37:18 38:21 39:3,18 40:22
41:2,11,13,18,22 42:2,5,9,11,
20 44:19,22 49:17 51:1 52:4,
14 54:5,24 55:19,21 60:14,16
61:22 62:25 63:8,11 64:3,23
65:18 67:5,11,17 68:3,10,16
72:6,7,21 73:7,11,16,19,23
74:5,10 75:3,9,16,20,21 76:2,
6,10,15,21,25 77:7,9,14,23
78:5,7,14,17,20 79:3,9,15,17
80:4,6,16,18 81:1,6,13 83:6,
16,17,21,24 85:7,15 86:4,6,9,
13,17,20,25 87:2,11,15,18
89:6 90:6 91:7,13,17

Chairperson 32:18

challenge 13:1

challenging 11:15

chance 10:20 29:9

change 31:17 39:20,22 40:6,8

changed 18:23 34:19 48:13
84:7

channel 2:10

chaplain 2:17 58:23

Chapter 14:20 23:11

charge 64:8

charged 49:11,12,14

charges 34:11

Charles 3:11 4:12 8:17 13:18
24:5

Charter 14:19 39:7

chartered 76:23

chase 33:23

check 45:19,21 48:2 49:19,25

checks 59:5,14

chief 4:4 8:7,16,18,19,21 9:1
10:1 14:10 15:14 16:14,19
17:6,8 23:13 28:8,13 31:16
32:15,16,17,18 35:22 36:10,
11 38:16 39:4,5,11,15 40:12
41:14,15 42:18,19 49:18,22

50:12,22 66:13,14 67:7 69:1
70:20 72:24 85:18,22

child 82:3

Childry 59:12

choice 11:18

Christ 4:14

Christmas 14:14 60:9

Christopher 33:19

chronicled 18:21

church 2:14 3:2,3,10,11 4:8,9,
13,16 14:1 72:23 74:7 75:7
80:13

Circuit 18:15,16 19:19

circumstances 34:9 46:18
50:5 51:9

cited 50:22

cities 23:24 35:5 74:13,24

citizen 14:24 15:13 26:17
59:22 64:10,11 85:2 86:7
89:19

citizens 14:22,25 15:3 20:24
22:2 26:23 27:2 29:11,12,25
30:9,18 31:2,14,25 62:7,13
63:24 69:7 77:18 78:11 84:25
87:1 90:11 91:3

city 7:13 10:5 11:22 12:25
13:9 14:19 18:19 20:25 23:2
24:9 25:19 26:23 27:2,15 29:8
30:7,21,23 31:23,25 35:1
36:10 37:16,17 39:7 43:19,21
48:25 49:2,16 56:25 65:20
66:23 67:14 70:3,10 72:15
73:1 75:24 78:11 85:1,2 88:23
89:4 90:21,24 91:3

City's 30:15 31:1

City-wide 10:19

citywide 28:22 65:22

civic 10:13,14

civic-minded 15:25

civil 14:6,25 19:2,12 20:8

civilian 14:21,23 15:11,19,23
16:5 20:14,16 27:4 43:1 44:6,
7

civilians 43:17,21,22 44:3,9

claim 65:19

claimed 11:23

clarification 51:23

clarify 90:8

class 82:7

classes 29:25

classic 50:6

cleared 53:22 54:1

closed 38:13

closest 66:10

clothes 75:12,17

Coast 45:11

cochairmanship 19:12

coffee 59:25 60:18 61:8,25
62:18,21 68:10,11

Colby 8:14

Coleman 9:24,25 11:25 12:20
19:20 59:11

Coles 9:19 45:14,15 47:16
48:4,6 49:18 50:25 51:4,5
52:21

colleagues 27:7 77:16 78:9

collect 27:15

college 82:6,8

color 30:1

comeback 88:24

command 9:14 36:1 44:14

commander 9:7,8,9,10 17:4
27:12,13 55:23,24,25 59:20
60:5,17,20 61:2,18 62:1,5,11,
22 63:1,4,13,25 64:21 65:9,17
66:8,9 67:10,16 68:2,8,15

commanders 66:12 82:11

commanding 68:4

commend 37:13

comment 17:14 40:24 64:1
82:20

comments 17:18 69:9,10
83:23

Commission 19:13 39:7 71:3
90:18,19,21

commissioner 2:6,19,20,22,
24,25 3:2,4,6,20 4:21,24 5:2,
5,13,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,25
6:2,4,6,8,16,17 7:1,2,10 10:16
11:3 18:1,4,8,10 21:6 23:2,9,
17 24:14,25 25:3,7 27:5,6,21,
23 28:14,15,18,20 29:1,4
31:4,18,20,22 32:9,12 34:14,
16 35:10 36:5,7 37:18,20,21
38:15,19,21,25 39:1,4,13,17,
19 40:21,24 41:1,16,19,23
42:4,7,10 44:21,23 47:10
48:3,5,20 49:4 51:3 52:2,3,6,
18,19 53:15 54:3,4,6,12,15,
20,23,25 55:1,14,17 59:19
60:15,17,23,24 61:11,20,21,
23 62:2,6,12,23,24 63:1,5,12,
15 64:1,4,11,22,25 65:1,14
67:4 72:6,8 73:10,14,18,22,24
74:1,4,9,11 75:2,5,11,13,19,
20,21 76:1,5,7,13,20,24 77:1,
3,8,10,13,15,21,24 78:2,3,6,
13,15,25 79:4,14,17,18,24,25
80:2,5,14,16,19,25 81:2,8,11
82:17,18,20,25 83:2,4,8,16,22
84:11,12,21 85:3,4 86:6,22
87:4,5,9,11,12 89:7,8 90:5,7
91:5,11,12

commissioners 2:14 4:7 5:15
14:13,20 15:10 16:10 20:6,11,
23 21:17,25 22:24 26:22 27:4
29:15 30:13 38:22,24 44:19
60:14 69:13,21 70:2 73:1,7
75:10,13,23 78:23 84:19,23
89:16

Commissioners' 7:22

commitment 12:20 25:14,19
26:10

committed 2:14 25:10,24
26:25

committee 48:25 68:17 69:6
75:23 76:11,17 88:6

committees 77:17

common 12:1 13:14

communication 59:7 70:20

communications 69:11

communities 59:3

community 2:11 3:12 4:8,9,17
9:23 10:19 11:1,2 14:17,24
15:8 16:8 22:2,5 25:16,18,20,
23 26:4,5,7,9,14,16 27:14
34:7 58:25 59:25 60:2,25
61:4,5 65:2,3 66:5,12 68:5
69:18 75:25 77:16 79:7 80:11,
21 84:14 90:24

companies 29:7 30:6,16,20,22
31:3

compared 32:24

comparison 65:24

complain 59:13

complaint 63:7,9

complaints 15:3,13 63:19

completed 4:18 53:6

completion 53:19

compliance 59:14 79:11

compliant 84:25

complicated 42:12 50:10

concept 12:10

concern 14:6 31:24 52:22
85:9 86:5

concerned 49:19

concerns 14:5 37:23 41:14
44:20 70:12

concerted 34:21

condemns 29:24

conditioning 43:14

condolences 21:3

conducted 16:18

conducting 2:7 62:19

conference 15:20 16:1,4
20:17 69:19 74:23

confined 66:8

confiscated 56:22

confusion 89:24 90:8

congested 35:24

connection 70:4,9,20

consequence 66:24

consideration 15:17 32:13
69:14

considered 26:17

consistent 13:5

constituents 35:16

Constitution 22:20

constructive 88:2

consultation 29:18

contact 45:4,9,12 46:16 47:8,
22 48:20 49:8 85:25

contacting 47:23

contacts 45:16,24 46:17 47:2,
7,18 51:18,19

continue 15:18 33:3 36:2 59:6
63:20 68:4

continuous 44:5

contract 70:2,4,5 72:15

contributions 11:7 19:1 22:16

control 14:22 60:12

Controls 9:17

convalescence 41:23

conversation 50:11 51:1

convey 66:15

convicted 46:25 49:9

conviction 48:14,17

convictions 47:2
cooperation 68:6
cop 60:19 61:8 62:21 68:12
copies 87:25
copy 16:3,6,21 60:1
cordial 84:15
core 58:23
corner 49:3 57:22
corral 49:6
correct 71:25 76:20 77:7 78:5
corrected 18:6
correlate 49:15
council 10:5,19 23:3 34:15
48:25 70:3,8,10,13 72:15
Councilman 10:5 28:15
country 23:7 74:18
County 34:10 66:25
couple 23:15 41:19 54:17 63:6
70:8,9
court 7:19 11:13 18:15,17
19:16,19 23:14,20
cousins 22:9
Couzens 14:2
cover 17:2
covering 40:19
CPOS 60:11
CPS 56:15
Craig 4:4 8:20 28:13 32:16,18
49:18 50:12 85:18
Craig's 31:16
crew 58:4
crime 17:4,7 32:20 33:7 56:3
57:4,11,12 58:1,11,20,24
60:11 61:6 82:3
criminal 15:13 29:11 30:20
32:21 58:7 81:21 82:8

criminality 67:12
critical 15:8 17:7 34:2
criticism 66:16
Crockett 13:9
crossing 20:8
crucial 49:25 50:3,17
CSCS 56:12,16
culture 20:2 67:4,5
Cup 61:25
current 20:4 42:24 56:3 70:16
custody 34:12 41:5
Cynthia 32:2,5

D

daily 19:3 20:2
Dale 56:1
Damon 11:5,11 13:10,17,22
18:14 19:1,6,16 20:5,25 24:15
Darkness 20:4
Darryl 2:25 6:1 17:5
date 33:15 56:5,6,21 61:3
dated 28:11
dates 76:11
Davis 5:19,20 6:16 7:1 38:25
39:1,4,13 54:4,6,12,15,20,23
85:4
Davison 75:7
day 5:3 49:4 72:23 82:14
86:24
days 16:10 22:15 73:3
DC 17:10
dealing 50:6,9 59:13
deceive 90:20 91:4
decent 71:10
decide 49:6

decision 12:21 22:22
decisions 77:19
decrease 32:23 33:2,5,6
dedicated 25:10,12,18 26:24
56:25
dedication 25:14
deemed 57:6,16
deep 19:6
degree 82:16
Delegate 10:11
democracy 19:7 20:4
Denise 23:13
Dennis 9:18
department 12:12,19 13:4
14:9,22 15:14 17:8,12 19:22
20:24 25:21,23,25 26:6,24
29:16,19 34:22 36:12 37:14
41:3,7 42:24 47:3 58:15 66:4
71:24 80:23 81:18 82:16
88:19 89:2,4
departments 26:9 45:22 47:23
depend 45:24
depends 46:18
deployed 57:7,10
deportation 19:25
Deputy 8:16,18,21 9:1 10:1
14:10 28:8 32:15,17 35:22
38:16 39:4,11,15 40:12 41:14,
15 42:18,19 66:13 85:22
Dequindre 75:7
desegregation 11:21 19:23
deserve 78:12
detainee 16:17
detainees 69:4
detective 44:13 85:16
detectives 58:6
determination 47:9 51:13

determined 56:25
Detroit 2:1,15 11:22 12:25
13:1,4,7 14:19 15:10,21,22
18:19 19:6,14,21 20:6,16,24
22:2 24:8,9 25:19,21,22,25
26:8,22,23 27:3 28:10 29:6,9,
16,19 30:8,12,21,23 31:14,23
37:13 41:3,7 43:20,22 45:15
52:8,12 65:20 66:24 67:14,18
70:3 75:24 78:12 80:22 81:17
89:4,13
Detroit's 20:13 69:18
Detroiters 18:22
developed 13:12
developing 15:6
devices 17:21,22
devotion 27:1
Dewaelsche 5:13 6:6,7 7:2
18:8,10 23:2 28:15 29:1,4
54:25 55:14,17 80:16,19
81:11
dial 66:13,14
dialogue 52:16 67:7
died 24:15
Dies 20:4
difference 13:22 24:8 30:4
difficult 35:24
diffused 62:12
diligent 26:24
diligently 50:21
dinner 23:6,8,23
direction 33:3
directions 59:13
Directive 16:16,18
directives 16:15 69:1
directly 69:10
Director 16:25
disability 30:2 33:16

disabled 44:11 55:3,10,11
disciplinary 16:21
disciplining 84:20
discriminate 29:24 50:14
discrimination 11:21 12:2
13:5 29:10 31:2
discriminatory 15:5
discuss 59:24
discussing 88:3
discussion 6:19 7:3 21:11
28:3 31:8 32:4 71:1,5 76:4
77:13,14,25 79:12
disenfranchised 87:6
dispatch 40:16,17
disqualification 47:6 53:8,11
disqualifications 48:7,9,19
disqualified 43:7,8 44:25
45:4,7,13 46:5 48:11,12 51:17
52:24 53:3
disqualify 47:4 52:25
disrupt 57:23
distinct 18:13
distinction 18:25
distinguished 4:7
distributed 71:3
district 2:6,15,24 3:1,8 5:20,
22 6:1,3,9 10:6 11:11 13:11
18:3,16,17,18 19:16,17 23:14
63:24 87:7
districts 2:12
disturbances 62:17
DOC 59:4
Dolan 36:11
domestic 59:2 82:2
donating 26:1
donations 26:2,3

donut 68:11
donuts 62:18 68:11,14
doors 3:13
dope 50:9
doughnut 68:13
Downtown 34:25 35:2,6,11,
20,21 36:13,18,22,23 37:9,16
38:14
DPD 8:20 15:12 16:24,25 17:6,
22,23 36:8,15 37:6 66:6 67:23
DPS 56:15
draw 68:20
drive 59:1
driver's 53:8,9,25
drivers 29:6
driving 57:9 64:17
DROP 44:15,16
drove 89:23
drug 49:22
due 33:23 50:5 56:13
Duggan 74:24
Duggan's 31:15
duplicate 23:24
duties 7:14 44:10
duty 33:16 44:4
DV 58:20 60:11

E

e-mail 53:23,25 69:11
e-mails 53:21
Eagle 59:21
early 58:16
Easter 60:1,2
Eastern 18:18 19:17
easy 54:22

economic 29:5,20
economics 11:18
Eddie 59:21
educate 57:9
education 62:17
effective 15:7 33:15
effort 12:4,19 79:19
efforts 25:22 34:21 36:8 37:13 87:21
egg 60:1
egregious 58:19
eighty-two 33:4
elected 10:4,8,9 87:22 89:20 90:23
electing 16:9
election 4:19 16:11 90:3
electronic 17:21
eleven 72:25
eleven-percent 33:5
eliminate 15:4
Elizabeth 5:23
embedded 60:10
emergency 17:23 88:22
Emmanuel 25:11
emotions 71:18,20
employed 13:4 30:22
employee 52:7
employees 30:17
employment 11:21 29:23 30:17,25 31:24 36:22
employment- 30:9
empowered 14:21
encourage 53:18 69:7
end 17:13 81:2 84:8
endeavors 29:13 30:10

endurance 18:25
energy 16:19
enforcement 14:24 15:20,24 20:17 50:2 57:17 58:2 59:8 72:22
engage 57:18
engaged 20:20 57:8 59:16 62:15 70:25
engagement 61:4
engaging 50:8 66:6,7
ensure 29:12 37:14
ensuring 20:21
entered 47:12
entertain 91:9
entire 22:5 90:21
entitled 29:9 69:3 71:4
environment 34:19
equal 22:18,21 30:16
equality 19:7
equitable 30:9,24
erected 19:22
erroneously 71:19
escorted 52:8,12
established 26:5
ethics 84:20
Eva 6:6
evaluate 49:1
evening 2:5 3:6 5:19,21,25 6:2,4,6,8 7:25 8:2,4,9 10:17 42:21 45:14 55:24 72:5 81:15 85:9 89:12
evening' 6:15
event 60:7 61:4
events 11:15 57:19
everybody' 74:21
everybody's 91:2

Evette 6:8
evidenced 20:2
exam 43:11
examples 53:17
exchange 40:2,4
excited 5:9
excitement 26:10
excuse 73:3,6 86:9
excuses 88:13
Executive 8:1
exemplifies 26:15
existence 18:21
exists 15:11
expect 35:8 89:20
experience 35:3 50:20
expert 34:24
expound 52:9,10
express 14:5
expressed 31:24
extend 21:3
extensive 58:7
extent 71:8
extinguisher 86:11
extra 54:16,17
eyes 45:3

F

faces 89:25
facial 71:4,7,8,23
facilities 29:17
facility 2:13 3:14 33:18
facing 17:7
fact 12:8 38:12 61:3 90:9
facts 34:9

factual 38:10
failed 12:4 13:2 43:11,13,14
fair 12:6 29:9,12,22,23 30:9, 15,24
fairness 19:7 22:17
Faith 83:10 84:2,13
fall 44:2 46:15 47:14
fallen 14:5,12
families 26:12 60:8 85:13
family 11:4,6 21:4,24 22:24 25:14 80:22 85:11,13,24 86:16
fantastic 65:21
Farwell 39:7
fast 81:5
fated 19:7
father 25:10
favor 6:20 7:4 21:12 28:4 31:9 78:17 91:15
Faye 8:2
fearless 66:18
February 29:8
federal 11:11 13:10 23:14 59:7
feel 62:20 72:9,16
feet 38:18 66:22
fellow 27:7
felony 48:14
felt 20:18 22:4 49:22
FEMALE 77:6
fifteen 25:13 89:23
fight 17:3
fighting 58:24
filled 42:25 43:2
final 40:24 70:24 89:9
Finally 17:19

finance 13:21
financial 8:3 13:20
find 45:1 50:19 54:22
fine 73:22 85:1 87:17
finish 21:16
finishing 82:16
fire 25:22 26:9 57:23 58:1 61:3 67:6 86:10
firearms 56:22
fiscal 70:15,16
Fitzgerald 8:17,18,21 9:1 10:1 17:8,10 28:8 32:16,17 35:22 38:16 39:11,15 40:12 42:19 85:22
five-year 12:12
fliers 74:20
floor 5:7 80:7 83:25 87:3 91:8
FMLA 44:5,6 55:6
focus 71:14
focused 64:19
folks 24:3 84:3
follow 13:25 41:25 63:9 89:17
follow-up 35:11 85:12
food 26:2
Foods 25:13 26:3
foot 33:23
force 15:6 16:16 48:23 69:4 84:23 89:14
forefront 15:2
form 24:2 69:11
formally 4:22 49:11
fortunate 21:1
forty-three 32:24
forward 3:19 4:23 5:10 6:15 12:4,17 25:1 71:22 74:6 83:14
fought 12:22

founding 23:8
Fox 37:11
frankly 69:12
Freedom 23:6,22
freedoms 20:2
friend 20:6 52:11
friends 21:4 80:21
friendship 11:25 12:1
friendships 13:13
frigid 57:21
front 18:11 25:6 70:3,22 81:24 83:13
full 4:11 40:11
full-time 88:7 90:22
Fund 23:6,22
funds 70:15
funeral 13:25
furlough 56:1
future 5:11 19:4 68:24 89:5

G

game 36:16 60:3 64:16
gang 57:16,23 58:3,18 59:6,8
gap 39:23
gather 51:20 69:22
gave 85:6
general 48:10
generally 69:21 71:7
get all 65:15 66:15
giants 18:24
gimmicks 88:25
give 4:4 20:18 26:11 27:16,18 33:12 38:22 55:7 63:6,7 68:16 83:1 86:22 90:23
giveaways 60:8

giving 42:22
goal 59:1 82:4
Godspeed 21:3
Goldston 4:20,25
Gonzalez 80:23 81:3,15 82:21, 24 83:2
good 2:5 3:6 5:19,21,25 6:2,4, 6,8 7:25 8:2,4,9 10:17 42:4,21 45:14 55:24 62:20 63:22 81:2, 15 85:9 88:20 89:1,4,11,12,14
government 2:10 19:23,24 20:9 71:13
grace 27:17 75:18
graduates 43:16
graduation 19:9
Grandmont 9:23 10:23
great 3:2 11:1,8,9 18:20 20:5 24:21,22 35:2,5 37:7 41:3,8,9 63:2 65:3
Greater 27:16
Greektown 17:9 33:12 34:7, 17,25 35:7,12,14 36:9 38:11, 14 41:10 66:16,23
Green 59:14,17
greet 61:3
grew 22:7
grieve 22:16
Griffie 6:8,9 34:14,16 35:10 77:3 78:13,15 79:24 80:2,5 90:5,7 91:11
Griffie' 77:10
grocery 26:3 81:18
group 6:21 7:5 21:13 27:25 28:5 31:6,10 57:15,23 58:4,18 59:5 63:22 78:19,21 91:16
groups 25:23 26:10 86:2
guess 35:10 70:24 84:5,25
guided 83:19

Guidelines 29:21
gun 58:4,5 59:21,22
gun-related 57:5
guy 24:21 72:17
guys 8:25 49:3 85:12
gym 24:16

H

Hall 13:9
hand 40:23 73:8
happen 32:6 39:23 56:7 58:22
happened 46:19 47:25 56:16 81:4
happening 34:20 35:18,20,21 39:20 40:7 71:6
happy 72:5 85:1
hard 12:22 55:7 56:24
hardship 29:5,20
harm 66:20
Harold 83:10 85:7
Harris 81:23
Hartford 14:1,2
he'll 85:17
headquarters 14:15 80:10 81:5,22
heads 2:20
hear 11:24 35:17 36:25 66:6 80:3 86:15 87:19
heard 68:13 81:9,10 83:18
hearing 39:21 45:2 88:12
hearings 19:25
heavily 38:2,12
held 2:12 16:12 17:22 19:6 89:23
helped 62:20
helping 80:24 82:5

heritage 11:18
Hicks 6:11,12 7:8,10 8:6 68:18,19 78:22
hiding 63:12
High 19:9
higher 12:17 58:8
highest 27:3
Highland 74:13
highly 66:16
hire 50:15
hired 43:6
hirees 44:24
hires 43:17,18
hiring 12:5 13:2 29:23,24 30:5,16
historic 74:6
historical 21:18
history 11:1 12:18 13:19,23 30:20 58:7
hoc 68:17
hold 17:19
holds 26:11
holiday 14:14
holistic 58:23
Holley 2:19,20 3:4 6:4,5 23:9, 17 24:7,14 37:20,21 38:15 41:16,19,23 42:4,7,10 59:19 72:6,8 73:10,14,18,22 74:1,4 79:17,25
Holt 5:17,18 31:18,20,22 32:9, 12 52:19 53:15 54:3 60:23 61:21,23 62:2,6,12,23 64:1,4, 22 76:5,7,13,20
home 3:2,10 33:19,20 34:3 59:5
homeless 84:14
homes 41:24

homicide 9:18 59:7 85:16
homicides 32:21 56:5
honor 18:13 27:17
honorable 18:14 19:1 21:2
27:6 42:21 84:2,3 86:8
honorary 20:13
honored 23:1 27:8
honoring 11:6 25:7 72:24
Hood 23:13
hope 3:16 17:2 43:25 70:11
hoping 33:25
host 15:20 20:13 60:18
hosting 20:16
hot 17:3 57:3,6,11
hour 40:16,17,18
hours 82:13 90:22
house 32:2 50:7
housing 29:10,13
housing-related 30:10
Howard 9:3
HR 8:5 16:24 42:16
huge 51:16
humble 19:5
hundred 87:6
hundreds 26:12
hunt 60:1
hurt 65:4
husband 25:10

I

I.D. 49:5
identify 55:2
identifying 58:16
ignore 66:21

impact 13:21 19:25 66:23
72:16
Imperial 27:11
important 11:10,19 14:7 15:17
20:18 28:25 31:13 49:20 50:4
89:19,25
impressed 36:18,19
imprint 19:3
improving 27:1
inaccurate 18:4
inaudible 23:11 28:22 56:23
58:10,12,17 59:2,5,10 77:5
82:5
incarceration 59:1 67:10,11
inception 24:12
incident 34:7,9,12 36:24 37:22
51:10
incidents 36:24 38:10,13 56:9
include 17:21 25:21 46:2
included 81:19
includes 46:3
including 11:20 19:10,23
20:10 30:1,18 70:7
incoming 68:22
incorporate 30:8,19
incorrect 90:14 91:1
increase 32:25 35:7,15
increased 34:25
increasing 15:9
indebted 24:3
indefinitely 77:4 78:24
indicating 51:2
individual 15:3 47:4 53:1
individuals 15:25
industries 18:23
influx 51:16

info 83:1
inform 42:2
information 14:11 15:17 16:4
30:4 45:21 47:11,12 49:10,15
51:21 65:15 69:13,17 90:12,
20
informed 75:25 79:7
initiate 31:17
initiated 13:3 49:24
initiative 32:10
initiatives 26:4 56:4
injured 14:5,9,12 33:22
injuries 34:2 69:4
injury 16:17 55:13
inner-city 67:21
inspector 66:11
instance 46:23 48:14 51:6
instances 46:20,21 47:7,18,21
51:14,19
integrate 19:21
intel 59:8 82:3
intelligent 71:17
intentional 13:5
interact 13:14 50:18
interaction 23:12 50:1
interest 43:6
interested 80:22
intermittent 44:6 58:12
Internal 9:4,17
Internet 74:21
interning 82:15
internship 43:25
interpreting 71:18
interrupt 17:25
intervene 58:16

intervening 70:11
intervention 58:13
intimate 58:15
intimidated 67:3
introduce 3:1 4:22 5:16 7:9,22
8:7,20,23
investigate 15:12 63:16
investigated 46:1
investigating 15:2 46:6
investigation 9:4 16:17 45:17
46:11,19
investigations 46:20 69:5
investigator 8:7,11,12,13,14
invite 16:2
invited 2:17
inviting 15:24
invocation 2:18,21
involve 61:5
involved 33:16 34:1 56:4
involvement 28:23
IPV 58:15,18,21
issue 17:11 53:22 67:18 76:15
issued 34:11
issues 11:20 17:7 49:1,16
59:14,15,24 62:8
item 8:16 24:24 28:25 55:21
items 15:17 68:20,22,24,25
69:5 70:17 72:3

J

jackings 33:2,5 56:10
Jacqueline 9:7 17:4 55:25
James 9:19 10:22 14:1 16:19
28:13 33:14
January 20:12 29:18
Jeffrey 59:11

Jermaine 7:23
Jerome 18:14 19:6
Jesus 4:14
Jim 6:4
Jimmy 19:18
job 4:6,10 36:15 37:7 41:4,8,9
63:2,17 64:20 65:21 66:8 67:8
89:12,14
Joe 8:24
John 9:15 80:13
Johnson 8:2 19:15 32:2,5
33:17 64:5,7,13
join 15:25 18:11 23:3 89:1
joined 18:1 86:2
joining 2:9 80:22
Jordan 83:12 85:8 89:10,11,
13
journalist 11:2 22:12
journals 20:1
judge 11:5,6,11,12,19,23 12:2,
3,21 13:9,10,11,13,17,22
18:9,14,15,17 19:18,22 20:3,
5,10,17,25 23:8,13 67:1

judgement 13:4
judicial 19:2
July 15:23 19:8,14 33:24 43:3
junction 21:2
June 16:8,13 33:21 80:12
jurist 22:10
jurists 11:10
justice 11:13 20:21 21:2
22:18,21 81:21 82:8

justified 14:23

K

K-9 81:24

keeping 56:25
Keith 10:25 11:2,4,5,6,12,19,
23 12:2,21 13:10,13,18,22
18:9,10,14 19:1,6,16,18,22
20:5,10,17,25 21:5,19,22,24
23:8 24:15
Keith' 11:7
Keith's 20:3
kids 59:22 81:4
kind 22:3 49:12 70:7 72:17
85:12
Kisselburg 33:15
knees 33:22
knew 13:12
knowing 20:7 21:25
Kris 27:17
Kristopher 24:24 25:8,9 26:25
28:13
kudos 63:6
Kyriacou 9:9

L

lack 35:18 37:25 38:5 43:6
lacking 49:23
lady 67:25
lanes 88:24
Lansing 32:1
larcenies 33:9 56:19
large 34:17
largely 71:20
largest 23:7
Lashanna 9:11
lastly 28:12
late 80:1
law 14:23 15:20,24 19:10 20:1,
17 22:11,21 50:2 58:2 72:22

laws 84:25
layer 58:11
leader 26:15
leaders 10:13,14 85:2
leadership 3:11
learned 22:10
learning 64:8
leave 24:18 44:4 55:2,4,8 73:5
86:23
left 62:21
legacy 20:25 23:21 24:7
legal 12:19 19:22 84:23
LEIN 47:12,17,19,20,21 48:1,2
Lemuel 33:21
Lena 9:16
lessen 61:6
letter 69:11
liaison 26:7
license 53:8,9 54:1
Liddell 10:22
lieu 59:1
lieutenant 9:1,3,19,23 12:17
45:11,14,15 47:16 48:4,6
49:18 50:25 51:4,5 52:21 54:7
66:10 70:21 81:22
lieutenants 54:9,13
life 11:17 15:9 19:3 20:24
22:5,17 24:1 27:1 30:11 59:15
lifestyle 11:18
light 11:12 59:14,17
lightly 50:13
likewise 70:22
limited 30:1
Lisa 6:2
list 69:1
listed 43:6,7 49:7 52:23 53:13

68:21 70:17
listen 90:25
listing 14:9
live 18:24 23:21 37:16 43:20
47:23,24 85:1
lived 22:5,17,20
lives 11:16 45:19
living 26:19
local 13:9
locally 11:14
located 14:2 17:15
location 75:4,6 89:24
locations 57:3,11,16 59:17
61:1
long 12:22 23:12 36:2 37:4
47:10,12,13,20
long-term 12:1 33:18
Longest 75:8
longevity 23:12 24:20
Lord 4:14
loss 24:21,22 86:17
lost 44:3
lot 22:14 24:20 47:25 56:14
65:2 82:22
loud 64:18
Louis 67:19
love 22:3 25:14 90:24 91:3
loved 22:7 81:25
loving 25:9
Luther 10:25 11:4,5
Lutheran 80:13
Lyndon 19:15

M

Macedonia 2:13 3:10,12,24
4:12

made 12:21 22:22 23:15 24:7
36:8 38:22 50:23 56:21 77:19
Madrigal 8:12
major 12:21 23:15,23 35:5
59:8
make 13:22 15:15 17:14 23:4
25:6 39:12 47:9 51:13 54:9
58:19 65:10,11 69:9 71:22
72:19 76:7 80:17 87:21 88:20
89:1,4,25
makes 35:24
making 17:5 24:8 31:1 34:8
41:4,8 50:15 67:24 79:19
MALE 21:8 60:4
man 21:2 24:12 49:15
manage 42:12
manager 8:1 88:23
mandated 76:23
Marcella 8:4
marijuana 53:7
Marilyn 83:12 85:8 89:10,13
mark 20:14
Markets 27:11
Marshall 11:13 23:19
marvelous 35:3 63:17
match 69:23
matter 22:18 38:12 42:6 52:15
61:2 78:9 85:19
matters 30:11 84:8
Maurice 4:19,25
mayor 11:25 12:3 13:3,8,13
15:14 19:20 31:15 67:7 74:22,
24
Mccalister 8:6,9,10 10:5,6
28:11,16
Mcginnis 33:11 34:4,5,6,23
38:9 41:12
Mcnichols 75:8

MCOLES 43:4,9
Media 7:17
medical 33:20 44:7,8,9 55:3,4, 8 88:21
Medina 7:18
meet 2:13 14:13,15,16 61:3 88:8
meeting 2:7,10,11,12,15 3:7, 17 6:15 7:17 8:10 11:8 16:8, 13 17:13,25 20:15 21:21 32:19 39:5,7 52:16 62:10 65:15 68:23 80:8,11,21 84:9 88:9,10 91:19
meetings 68:24 75:23 77:17 87:23 88:7 89:18,22
meets 63:23 90:21
Melanie 7:25
member 11:4 23:8 85:24
members 7:21 23:3 24:1 44:7 57:24 58:18 59:6 70:8 77:16 87:23 90:13
Memorial 14:1
Memphis 67:20
men 4:5 11:14 13:11 36:19 49:2 57:9,14 66:18 67:13 71:20
mention 63:11
mentioned 62:9
merchants 38:8
merits 27:3
messages 41:21
method 12:3
Michael 9:18 34:6
Michelle 4:20 5:2,3,7
Michigan 2:1 18:18 19:17 47:11
microphone 83:15
mid 33:24

military 44:10
mind 47:5 48:22 68:1 81:3
mini 65:23
minister 67:8
ministering 24:9
Minor 3:22,25 4:1
minute 88:4
minutes 6:24 17:19 18:2 75:24 76:10 77:20 79:5,11,14,16,21 83:23 87:24 88:1 89:18,23 90:9,11,15,16
misconduct 15:4
misnomer 62:2
misquoted 90:13
model 58:2
modify 15:15
moment 21:18
Monday 13:25 14:3 70:4
monetarily 26:2
money 88:24
monitor 15:13 63:21
month 14:16,17 42:22 43:10, 16 44:2,17 54:19 70:25
monthly 16:24 42:22
months 35:7 41:20 43:19 54:17 63:6 72:19
moral 58:25
morning 32:21
Mother's 72:23
motion 6:23 7:7 21:15 28:7 31:12 76:16 77:10,11,12 78:4, 7,18 79:1,12,15 80:3,6 91:9
motor 29:17 33:9 57:9,14
motto 26:19
Mounsey 9:13 27:12
move 6:15 10:15 18:8 21:6 24:23 27:23 28:24 31:4 32:15

37:1,2,19 42:16 52:17 71:22 75:21,22 77:3 79:4 80:7 81:7 83:20
moved 6:16 7:1 11:15 21:9 28:1 31:7 76:2 77:9 91:11,13
Movies 60:6
moving 81:11
MUHAMMAD 9:23
multitude 46:16
mural 74:17
murder 85:14
murdered 85:10 86:15
Museum 13:19
mutual 15:7 20:8

N

NAACP 23:5,11 24:2
NACOLE 15:19 16:4 20:19 69:19
names 85:6
nation 11:7,14 21:1 22:4 35:5
national 15:19,20 20:16 30:1
nationally 11:14
nationwide 67:18
native 19:6
nature 46:3
nay 77:5 78:21
nays 78:23
necessarily 47:17 53:4 55:12
needed 62:14
negative 71:20
neighborhood 9:24 26:1,17 61:10 62:15 65:19
neighborhoods 65:12
neighbors 13:16 24:15 50:18 62:8,16

news 35:17
newsletters 70:6
Nick 9:9
Nickels 8:13
night 47:7
ninety 24:16
ninety-six 24:16
nonfatal 32:25 56:6
norm 54:10
normal 16:24
North 3:15
Northeastsider 28:19
Northwestern 19:9
note 16:3 69:16 81:2
noted 61:18
notes 51:2
noticed 88:16
notification 16:10
noting 31:25
notwithstanding 11:17
November 85:10
NPO 59:10,20 62:4 66:12
NPOS 56:4 59:9,12,15 62:9,20
63:8,15 65:12,21 68:5
number 10:23 16:16 33:17
56:3,24 57:2,3,25 59:9,18
60:10 65:19 67:18,19,20
71:24
numbers 44:24 55:4,5,6 63:3

O

Oakman 80:13
oath 20:11
obtained 17:16
obvious 50:8

occupational 33:20
occur 35:8
occurred 38:11
OCI 8:8
off-duty 40:16
offender-focused 58:13
offenders 56:14
offense 53:5
offenses 53:1 57:9
offensive 87:21
offered 43:14
office 34:10 35:13 41:25 66:9
officer 4:19 9:18,19,24,25
12:12 14:6,9 33:14,19,21 44:8
46:12 49:21 51:22 52:1 64:5,
6,7,9,13 65:20
officer' 50:7
officers 14:5,12 16:9 20:10
26:2 33:14,25 36:1,17,21
37:1,6,8,25 38:6,17 39:8,22
40:3 41:21 43:15,20 44:3,5,6,
9,11,13,14,15 46:8 49:20
50:16 54:14 55:4 56:24 57:7,
22 63:22 65:4 66:1,2 68:4
80:24 88:21 89:13,15
official 25:6 79:20,22
officials 10:4,8,9 20:10 90:23
Ohio 23:16
OIC 85:23
older 22:10
one- 53:7
ongoing 54:8,13 65:19
online 77:17
open 4:13
opened 3:13
operate 29:16
operation 13:6

operations 15:4,13 29:17
40:19
opinion 19:20 34:24
opportunities 29:13 30:25
38:23
opportunity 12:6 22:18 23:10
31:15,23 32:3 57:18 64:9,12,
13
opposed 6:22 7:6 21:14 28:6
31:11 78:20 91:17
opposition 11:23,25 12:23
13:2
ops 57:13
optimistic 34:11
order 19:13 57:13 77:22 78:8
79:13,24 80:2 84:16
ordinance 29:9
organization 4:18 15:23 85:20
organizations 15:1,25
organizer 11:2
origin 30:2
Osborne 83:11 85:7,9 86:1,10,
14,18
OTES 57:18
other's 13:12
outlet 61:13
outpour 74:12
outpouring 74:15
outreach 26:6
outstanding 17:11 68:17
overabundance 39:8
overage 54:13
overbudgeted 54:8
overlap 40:15,18
overlapping 40:10
oversight 14:21,23 15:1,11,
19,23 16:5 20:14,17 27:4

overt 13:5
overview 56:2
owner 25:13

P

p.m. 2:3 13:19 14:16,18 80:9,
12 91:19
package 16:6,22
packet 69:16
paid 90:23
paint 75:12,15
Painter 33:25
paper 50:20
paperwork 53:6
Park 60:6,7 74:13
part 24:7 33:7 46:3
participate 53:19
participating 44:16
participation 16:2 87:16
partner 58:12 59:6
partners 59:4,7
parts 35:20,21 84:9
pass 35:24
passed 22:3 29:9 31:12 43:11,
13
passes 26:12
passing 11:10
passionate 26:18
past 40:18 50:5
pastor 3:1,11,18,21 4:12,16
paths 20:8
PATRICK 34:15
patrol 35:7 36:9,16 57:7 63:23
Patroller 10:23
patterns 15:3 58:16

Patterson 17:5 56:1
pause 38:23
peaceful 3:17
pedestrian 35:25
pensions 88:20
people 2:9 13:14,15,21 24:11
26:18 36:13 37:2,3,22 48:11
56:13 61:9,14 65:23 66:6
67:6,25 71:21 82:22 83:14
85:6 86:2 87:22 88:2,5,7,8
89:1 90:25
People's 89:14
percent 32:23 33:9 56:5,7,8,
10,11,18,19,20
performance 64:14
performing 7:14
period 14:15 54:14 70:11
permanent 47:6 48:7,19
permanently 43:7 44:25
permitting 57:20
person 11:1 19:2 41:5 45:13
47:1 50:15 51:7 52:13 53:5,6,
18 69:23 85:25 88:17
person's 11:17
personal 24:14
personally 12:8
personnel 17:1,22,23 44:12
50:2 52:15
persons 90:1
phase 45:18
phases 13:6
Phillips 9:2,3,4
phone 17:20,24
phones 17:24
phonetic 52:11 58:15
photographs 71:16
physical 34:1 43:5,12

picking 71:18
pictures 71:19
pillar 25:17
pillars 19:22
pinnacles 18:22
Pistons 37:11
pity 36:12
pivotal 19:13
Pizza 61:9
place 3:5 26:6 27:18 36:24
46:7 69:15 71:15 73:2 76:23
77:19 79:7 84:17,18
plain 12:7
plan 19:21 73:8
planning 16:1 72:19
platoon 40:19
playing 22:8
pleasant 3:17 75:6
pleased 2:13 64:14
pleasure 21:25
pledge 22:19
plight 11:18
point 15:16 24:14 37:25 38:1,
22 39:9 77:22 79:18,20,24
80:2 88:10
police 2:5,14 4:17 7:21 8:5
9:20,24 10:19 12:11 13:4
14:13,15,20,22 15:4,5,6,8,10,
15 16:9,15,19 17:7,12 19:21
20:6,10,11,23 21:24 22:24
25:21,25 26:2,8,22,23 27:3
29:15,16,19 30:13 34:22
36:11,12 37:14,25 38:6,17
39:8 40:9 41:3,7 43:16,18,21,
23 44:3,13 45:4,8,12,15,16,
19,22,24 46:8,16 47:3,7,8,19
49:8,20 51:11,12,17,22,25
52:8,12 61:15 62:7 64:6,11
65:4,19,22 66:21 69:20 70:2
71:6 75:22 80:22 81:4,17

89:13,15
policed 35:12
policies 30:8 69:8,9 71:25
policing 15:7 35:6 66:23
policy 8:1 13:5 15:15 29:6
30:7,15 31:1 69:3,6
Polly 8:10
pone 77:4
poor 13:15
popular 13:8,10
populated 66:17
position 54:16
positions 42:25 43:1 54:7
positive 66:4
possession 46:24,25
possibly 36:3
post 20:3 75:23 77:4 90:9
Post's 22:22
posted 69:6 77:17
Posthumously 18:18
postpone 78:24
postponement 77:25
Potts 9:11
pounce 62:16
powerful 13:9
practical 57:7
practice 19:12 40:5
practices 13:2 15:5 29:10,23,
24 30:5,16 71:25
praise 63:7
prayers 21:3
praying 67:12
precinct 2:23 3:7 4:18 8:25
9:6,8,10,12,15,22,25 10:10
12:13 17:1,3 26:1 27:2 28:19
33:22 34:1 55:22,25 56:21

57:1,16 59:17,23 60:12,21
61:5,17 64:24 65:7,13 80:13
82:11
precinct' 60:21
precincts 40:15 82:11
Precious 59:10
preference 77:11
Prep 81:20
presence 38:6 40:8,9,10
present 38:2 64:20
presentation 17:2,5 81:22,24
82:10
presentations 16:23
presented 16:25
president 4:20,21,25 5:2
10:18,22 19:15,18 34:15
presiding 21:2
press 74:22
pretty 34:1
prevent 58:13
Prevention 58:12
previous 77:12 78:3 79:8
pride 11:9
prides 26:18
primarily 57:15 66:8
prime 74:16
primer 75:15
principles 19:9
print 17:15
printed 89:21
printing 70:2,4,5 72:14
prior 57:4,11 82:16 87:25 88:1
priorities 14:7
Priority 57:5
Pritchett 9:7 17:4 27:13 55:23,
24,25 59:20 60:5,20 61:2,18

62:1,5,11,22 63:1,4,13,25
64:21 65:9,17 67:10,16 68:2,
8,15
privacy 71:1
private 19:12 29:7 30:5
privilege 20:7 24:22
problem 36:15 37:5 88:4,5,19
process 16:1 42:3 43:5 46:5
50:16,17 54:2,8 62:14 67:23
69:14 76:23 85:12,23
professions 18:22
program 43:25 44:15,16 67:8
72:24 81:21
prohibiting 31:2
Project 74:13
prominently 27:18
promise 89:5
promoted 12:9,15
promotion 12:5,6 70:21,23
Proper 6:18
properly 21:9 28:1 75:25 76:2
77:9 91:13
property 33:7
proposal 54:9
proposed 16:15 69:1,9 70:21
Prosecutor's 34:10
prostitution 57:19
protect 14:25 65:5
protected 29:25
protecting 20:20
protection 14:6
Protective 56:15
proud 67:1
provide 2:18 14:11,21 15:11
36:3 69:25
provided 16:11 90:16

providing 7:18
public 7:21 13:17 17:14,18
27:9 30:5 48:25 50:1 58:22
61:15 66:15 71:2 80:9 83:22
84:13 87:15
publications 70:7
publish 70:6
pull 40:3 48:2
pulled 13:21 46:6,7 51:7 59:12
pulling 24:12 39:25
purchased 3:14
Purifoy 9:16
pushed 44:1
put 17:23 53:7 65:12 70:10
79:15,21 82:19 87:24

Q

quality 15:9 27:1 30:10 37:15
59:15
quarter 40:17
question 23:19 34:21 35:11
51:3 52:5,20,22 53:15 54:4,6
55:1 61:16 65:6 78:16
questioning 30:4
questions 16:20,22 41:13
44:20 60:13 69:22 70:9,12
72:4,5 90:1
quick 54:25
Quinn 7:17
quorum 6:11,13
quoted 22:22
quotes 20:3

R

race 30:1
racial 12:2
radio 22:14 64:18

raise 83:22
raising 73:8
ramification 11:16
ran 89:21
randomly 61:15
rank 12:17
ranked 14:7
ratified 90:10
rationale 30:4
Ray 24:5
reach 28:18 53:23 67:12 69:18
reached 18:22
read 12:23 18:13 24:25 29:1
51:12,13 84:22
readily 48:2
reading 78:8
ready 40:3 61:7 74:17
real 50:19 81:5
reality 66:21 67:22
reapply 48:12,15
reason 38:5 45:23
reasons 45:6 88:12
Rebellion 19:14
receive 14:8 15:12 27:8 30:23
received 30:3 70:19
recent 11:5,10 17:9
recently 3:13 16:3 34:17 46:4
49:21
recognition 18:13 28:12 71:4,
8,9,23 74:6
recognized 64:8
recommend 61:12
recommendation 50:23
reconditioning 43:15
reconsider 53:13

record 19:2 47:2 49:9
recorded 78:23
Recording 5:3
records 29:11
recovering 33:18 34:3
recruit 16:7
recruiter 65:20,21
recruiting 9:20 43:2,15 45:15
50:13,23 52:23 65:8,22 67:23
81:18 82:23
recruitment 80:20,24
recuperating 33:19
Red 37:10
redemption 58:3
reduce 34:21 58:3 59:2
reduction 33:8 58:1
Reed 59:11
reference 23:16 73:12,23
76:17
referred 69:6
reflected 25:15
reflects 12:19
regard 71:11
Reggie 83:11
regrets 32:19
regular 79:5 85:25
regularly-scheduled 88:6
reinstate 54:2
relate 35:4
related 14:12 58:4
relates 54:6
relating 11:20 17:11
Relation 4:18
relations 10:19 27:9
relatives 80:21

released 67:6
relief 29:5
religion 30:2
remained 20:19
remark 23:5
remarkable 18:21
remarks 14:11 21:16
remind 15:18 74:11
reminder 53:18
reminding 42:14
remove 12:3 74:25
Rental 29:10
rep 32:1,5
report 14:4,8 16:24,25 17:6
39:6,10 42:17,22 43:9 44:17
54:19 55:16 63:2 64:17 68:18
70:1,7 72:10
reported 56:9
reporter 7:19
reporting 16:17 32:16 56:14
69:4
reports 51:11,12 56:15 68:17
represent 2:6
representative 10:9 27:10
representatives 10:13
Representing 2:24
request 17:21
requesting 17:6
requiring 30:15,19
reserved 64:12
reservoir 74:13,17 75:8
residence 43:22 75:17
residency 43:19
resident 29:1 63:17
residents 15:9 26:16 29:6
30:21,23 59:23

resolution 11:6 18:9,13 21:7
24:24 25:1,7 27:24 28:25
29:2,5,15,20 30:14 31:12
resolved 20:22 26:21 30:12
respect 4:4 15:8 87:5
respected 84:17
respectful 84:15
response 38:6
responses 16:22
rest 4:7 12:18 72:18 84:22
restore 57:13
restricted 44:4,10
resulted 56:23
Reta 25:10
retention 88:18
retired 50:16 65:25 66:1,2
retiring 23:20
returning 28:25 29:6,12,25
30:9,18,21 31:2,14 67:9
revamped 5:9
Reverend 3:22,25 4:1 24:7
review 30:20 34:10 69:8,14
70:18,23
reviewing 15:2
revision 69:2
ride 64:4,10 82:12 88:16
rights 14:25 19:3,13 20:8,20
ringing 17:24
robberies 33:2,4 56:8
Robert's 78:8
Rock 74:6
rode 63:10,15
role 19:13
roll 40:1 60:21
rookie 12:12

room 12:11 60:21 85:18
rotation 39:19
Roughen 4:20
round 68:16
row 7:20 83:13
Ruffin 5:1,3,4,8
rule 30:19 31:1,17
Rules 30:14,19 78:8
ruling 23:16
rulings 19:23
run 40:14 45:19,23 49:5
running 24:20 54:10
Rural 75:6
Russell 9:5 70:21

S

sadness 11:9
safe 35:11 36:4 57:1 59:3
62:20
safety 7:21 14:6 37:14,15
48:25 59:21,22 80:9
salute 4:6 20:24
sat 87:5
Saturday 13:18 60:1 74:16,23
82:22
saving 67:9
Saviour 4:14
scale 23:25
scan 71:15
scene 46:13
schedule 21:20 76:18
scheduled 43:10,13 88:9,10
scholarly 20:1
school 11:20 19:10 22:11
45:21 47:24 81:5

schools 59:21 81:20
Scottie 83:11 85:7
Scotty 10:10
scrapped 66:19
seat 90:4
seats 83:13
secondary 36:22
seconded 76:3 77:10 91:14
secret 19:24
Secretary 5:3 6:12 7:8 8:6
68:18,19 78:22
sector 61:12
sectors 36:10
security 41:10
send 53:17,21,23,24 69:10,11
73:20 82:9
sending 41:20 42:8 82:10
sends 32:18
Senior 8:11,12,13
sense 69:24
sensitive 84:8 85:19 86:12
separated 45:8 55:10
separates 45:13
September 15:21 19:17 29:14
sergeant 7:17 9:21 12:17
44:14 59:10,24 80:23 81:3,15
82:21,24
sergeants 12:9
series 71:16
serve 23:11
service 19:11 26:14,25 27:12
57:5
serviced 2:7
services 7:17 36:18 56:16
58:3
serving 20:13

session 79:5,6
set 61:13 68:22 81:18 82:12
83:2
Seventy 59:20
sex 30:2
sexual 32:23
shaped 11:14 18:23
share 12:24 13:24 24:10
shared 12:2
Shaun 59:12 63:13
sheet 16:4,6,7 69:17,21
Sheriff 66:25
shift 39:22 40:1,8,10,19
shift's 39:20
shifts 40:15,18
Shina 24:24 25:8,9,12,17,24
26:5,11,15,25 27:5,8 28:10,13
Shinas 27:14
Shirley 5:22 11:3
shooter 34:12
shooting 17:9 33:16 38:4,18
shootings 32:25 33:13 34:17
56:7
shop 68:11,13 81:18
shorted 88:22
shot 48:16
show 18:25 27:15 31:24 33:8
shows 22:14 43:12,13 45:6
shut 41:21
sick 41:21
side 3:8
sidewalks 35:23
signed 28:10,13
silent 58:20
similar 76:22

Simms 33:22
simple 64:17
simply 7:20
single 90:21
sir 4:1,15 8:18 10:15,21 37:20
39:3,16,18 40:14,20 41:18
42:19 44:22 47:6 51:5 54:5
55:20 62:25 67:16 72:7 75:11
79:3,10 81:12,13 83:21,24
85:15 86:13,22 87:2,13 89:6
91:7
sit 13:8 59:23 83:14 89:25
sitting 7:13 8:19 61:15 90:4
situated 3:12
situation 47:21 48:13 63:16,
21
situations 36:14 71:17
sixteen 32:22
sixteen-percent 32:25
sixty 66:22
skill 69:24
skills 69:23
Sloan 8:12
slogan 20:4
small 35:14,23
smaller 23:25
smoothing 84:24
soap 67:23
social 58:3,24 60:10
society 29:12
Solano 9:5
solely 73:7
solicitation 57:19
solved 38:13
son 4:16 74:20
sons 3:24

sort 50:4,14,23 85:20
souvenir 72:13
spanned 19:12
speak 12:8 38:24 39:1 45:11
83:17 85:15,17,20 86:4,21
87:13,16
speaker 17:15,19 60:4 77:6
83:10,17 84:1 85:8 87:8 89:9
SPEAKERS 21:8
speaking 20:23 26:22 71:7
special 40:19 57:13 73:2,6
84:21
specific 35:18 48:17 69:22
specifically 30:14,19,25 45:8,
12 47:20,22 48:8
speed 66:13,14
spend 17:9
Spirit 28:10
spiritual 58:25
spot 57:3,11
spots 17:3 57:6
spread 37:8
spreadsheet 45:6,11,13 48:4,
7
spring 44:1
sprouted 37:8
squad 81:25
SRT 81:25
St 67:19 80:13
stabbed 49:3
staff 7:9,22 8:8,20 16:3 35:25
44:6,7 50:12 72:25 90:13
staffed 38:12
staffing 42:24
stamp 11:19
stand 7:22 8:23 18:6 59:9 66:1
90:25 91:18

stand-up 26:17
standby 17:23
standing 49:2 67:1 76:11
standings 13:15
stands 11:12 35:23
Stanton 8:13
start 5:9,15 48:23 61:8 72:9
started 3:9
starting 5:10,11 8:22
state 32:1,3,5
stated 23:20 76:18
States 11:11,13 18:14,15,16,
17
station 65:24
statistics 59:2
stats 17:7 32:20 56:3 58:5
status 30:21
stay 40:17 47:13
stayed 35:2
staying 82:14
Stephen 2:17
stepped 36:16
stepping 36:9
Stevie 24:6
stick 89:2
stifled 87:23
Stoepel 60:6
Stokes 10:16,18
stop 13:2 29:10 46:11 51:10
stopped 45:25
stops 46:1,2 57:8
storage 29:17
stores 26:3 81:19 83:3
strangers 67:13

strategies 56:3
strategy 17:3 58:1
streamline 67:24
street 3:14 39:25 40:4 56:23
57:22 58:4 80:10 84:16
strong 19:8
strongly 29:23 35:25
struggles 12:1
student 43:24
students 13:15 81:24 82:6,8,
14
studied 12:13,14
stuff 47:14,16 49:12 51:24
successful 34:8
suffer 66:24
suffered 34:2
suggestion 61:24
summer 35:7
summertime 60:6
Sunday 72:22
supervisor 8:11 46:12,14
supervisory 14:21
supplements 57:25
supplied 81:23
support 4:11 6:17,18 7:2
20:18 21:8 24:11 26:25 27:25
30:15 31:6,16 34:8,13 36:3
77:6 86:2
supported 21:10 24:12 28:2
31:7
supporter 25:19
supporting 15:7
supportive 32:11
supports 29:22
supposed 82:13
supposedly 88:23,24

Supreme 11:13 23:20
surveillance 71:1,2,6,7,15
suspended 44:13 53:10
suspension 44:12
Svec 9:15
swearing 20:12
sworn 42:25 43:2,17,20,22
44:3,5,6,8,9,10,12
synopsis 33:12
system 47:13,17 49:5

T

table 7:16 17:16 61:13 65:8,11
79:6,12 80:20 82:23 87:6
takes 68:9 69:14 71:15 84:20
taking 21:20 60:25 77:19
talk 22:11 37:3 42:3,5 45:16
47:11 51:20 61:14 82:25 86:7,
23
talked 37:22
talking 42:7 45:17 54:15 63:17
67:20 79:18
taping 7:16
taps 19:24
targeted 57:17
Taser 16:18 69:2,3
task 48:23 89:14
taste 82:9
taxpayer 77:18
taxpaying 89:19
teach 59:21
team 81:18
technology 71:4,9,13,17
telling 45:22 46:8,9 81:3 90:2
temporarily 52:23,25 53:2
temporary 43:7 53:10,14

ten 16:21 18:2 46:21 68:20
73:3 89:23
term 45:2
terms 12:16,22 23:11 24:9
31:16 38:7 42:12 49:21,23
50:3,23 66:4 76:22
Terry 3:22
testify 66:25
testing 43:5,10
thankful 34:13 59:15 82:12
Thanksgiving 14:14
thefts 33:10 56:18
therapy 33:20
Theresa 7:13 17:17
thing 22:15 47:5 63:5 66:10
88:15
things 27:10 39:23 40:7 42:13
46:3 47:19 48:24 49:13,24
63:19 66:4,6 70:24 71:21,23,
25 72:18 88:24 91:1
thinking 48:15 61:3
thirty 38:18 88:18
thirty-nine-percent 33:6
thirty-seven 33:6
thought 60:24
thousand 87:6
three-tier 58:2
thrilled 22:25
Thurgood 11:13 23:19
Thursday 2:2 14:16,17 16:12
73:6 80:8,12
Thurston 33:19
ticketed 57:14
Tigers 37:10
time 3:19,20 4:23 5:14 11:11,
19 13:8 15:22 17:9 18:7 20:15
21:20 22:3 33:17 37:3,17 38:3
40:17 47:9 56:9 59:3 65:25

69:24 70:12 87:9,12,14 88:9,
11 90:3,16,23 91:1,10
timeliness 41:7
timely 41:4
times 46:22 47:25 76:12
timing 18:5 41:3
tirelessly 26:8
titles 45:2
today 2:8 12:19 16:23 36:23
50:4 70:19 73:4 90:11
told 38:8 63:8 84:17
tomorrow 83:3
tone 67:2
tonight 2:11,17,23 3:22,23
10:25 14:18 18:12 56:2 80:20
tonight's 2:11 7:17 8:10 32:19
68:23
top 64:15
total 42:25 43:17,18 44:14
55:7 56:20
totality 46:18 51:9
totally 66:3,11
touched 11:16
tour 82:1,7
tow 29:5,7,20 30:5,14,16,18,
20
towed 57:14
towing 28:25 29:17
town 37:10,11
traffic 35:25 37:2 46:1,2 51:10
trailblazers 18:20
training 57:2
transacted 62:3
transmitted 16:3,15,20
transparency 78:10 79:20
transparent 87:21 90:19

transpired 50:24
travels 35:4
treadmill 24:17,18,19
treat 26:19 30:8 86:25
Treated 26:20
treatment 30:24
trend 33:3
trends 56:3
trouble 13:20
Troy 59:11
Trozak 33:25
true 25:17
trust 15:7 89:3
Tucker 8:22,24
turkey 26:11 60:7
turkeys 26:12
turn 17:20 50:8 64:18
Turnell 52:11
TV 22:14
twelve-percent 33:2
twenty-four 33:1
twenty-one 32:23
two-year 53:8
Twymon 3:11,21 4:12
type 12:19,20 26:15 33:24
36:14 52:16 74:6
types 48:18 69:22
typical 40:4 70:23
Typically 68:23

U

U.S. 19:11,16,19
Uh-huh 52:10
ultimate 59:1

unable 56:1
unanimously 30:13
uncle 22:3,7,9,16
understand 4:17 28:18 32:14
50:2,3 52:7 63:18 66:16 76:14
understudied 71:5
unending 20:20
unfit 11:23
union 60:2
unit 40:2
United 11:11,12 18:14,15,16,
17
units 81:23 82:2
universities 19:10
University 81:20
UNKNOWN 77:6
unnecessary 15:5
unofficial 79:5,16
update 17:6 34:4 69:2 73:11
74:1 85:12
updates 85:25
upheld 12:14 19:20
urges 31:3
utilized 26:4

V

vacant 43:1,2
valuable 91:2
vast 19:25
vehicle 29:17 33:9
verify 51:13
versus 38:2 50:5
vibrate 17:24
vice 4:20 5:2 6:1 24:25 59:8
victim-center 58:14

victimized 85:13
victims 56:11,12
viewing 2:9,11
vigor 26:10
village 68:9
violators 59:8
violence 58:4,12,15 82:2
visit 50:7
visitation 13:17
visiting 37:16,17
visitors 15:10
voice 58:3 78:22
volunteer 16:4 69:17 76:19
volunteers 16:7 69:19,25
75:14
vote 78:10 79:21 90:15
voted 77:4 78:24 90:10
voters 87:6
voting 2:23 77:24

W

wait 58:10 73:14,16,19 90:9
waiting 72:15
Waldace 33:17
walk 11:17 13:15 67:2
wanted 5:11 12:24 55:3 63:6
65:6 88:15
warrant 30:21
warrants 19:24
Warren 10:5 28:11
Washington 20:3 22:22
Wayne 34:10 66:25
weapons 16:19
wear 75:12,16
weather 57:20

website 69:7,8,10 74:21 75:24
76:9,11 88:11

week 14:14 52:7 54:21 57:4,12
70:11 73:12,25 76:17 78:9
79:8,10 82:5 88:16 90:22

weekend 35:3 36:2

weekly 14:8

weeks 14:15 41:20 46:9 79:8,
15

well-being 25:20

Wesley 59:11

west 3:8

Wheatley 59:10

white 7:25 12:15 16:20 39:5

widely 37:8

William 5:20

Williams 59:11

Willie 2:6 9:21 18:1 50:19

Wings 37:10

wintertime 57:21

wire 19:24

wise 21:1 35:25

witnessed 24:6

women 4:5 36:19

words 22:20 38:1

work 7:15,18 11:16 13:12
15:6,11,14,18 20:8,20 22:1
24:4,5,6 25:15,21 27:16 36:22
37:13 42:3 68:4,6 75:16 88:7

work-related 55:12

worked 11:3 26:8

worker 60:10

workers 13:15

working 22:19 25:22 27:13
36:2,21 43:24 48:24 53:20
56:24 58:9 84:13,22,24

works 45:20

world 18:23

worth 31:25

worthy 51:22

Wright 13:18

write 32:11

writing 64:16 73:21,25

written 43:4,11

wrong 66:7 67:21 68:7 90:12

wrote 19:20

Wyrick 7:23

X

X2 16:18 69:3

Y

year 2:16 15:23 26:5 32:22,24
33:1 35:8 36:25 47:8 56:5,6,9,
20 70:15,16

years 23:15 25:13 64:6 84:6
86:3

yesterday 60:22,23 61:25
62:4,10

yield 87:9,14

Yopp 74:22,24

young 4:16 11:25 12:3,20
13:3,8,13 24:12 49:1,15,21
50:7 64:5,9 66:18 67:6,25

Young's 19:20

youth 3:21